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Merger

Dear Sir:

On behalf Network Long Distance, Inc. and United Wats, Inc., enclosed please find
an original and thirteen (13) copies of the referenced Application. Also enclosed is a check
in the amount of $250.00 to cover the filing fee.

Please date stamp and return the enclosed extra copy of this letter in the envelope
provided.

Please call me should you have any questions concerning this filing. Thank you for
your assistance with this matter.

Sincerely,

Benjamin W. Bronston
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

STATE OF FLORIDA
JOINT APPLICATION OF
NETWORK LONG DISTANCE, INC.
AND UNITED WATS, INC. CASE NUMBER J11634-1T
FOR APPROVAL OF A
MERGER
APPLICATION

Network Long Distance, Inc. (“Network™), and United Wats, Inc. ("UWI"), pursuant to the
applicable Statutes of Florida and the Commission's Rules and Regulations currently in effectand/or
subsequently enacted, hereby request Commission approval of the merger of UWI, a 100% wholly
owned subsidiary of Network, with and into Network (the "Merger”).

As will be described in more detail below, Network and UWI propose to enter into the
Merger whereby LU'WI, which is a 100% wholly owned subsidiary of Network, will be merged with
and into Network pursuant to the short form parent-subsidiary merger rules of the State of Delaware.'
Commission approval of the proposed Merger may result in cost savings because of discounts on
quantity ordering of materials and services and will streamline the level of service for all involved
customers. At the same time, approval of the proposed Merger will not in any way be detrimental
to the public interests of the State of Florida because the customers of both Network and UWI will
continue 1o receive the same high quality service presently rendered to them and no party to the
proposed Merger will be given undue advantage over any other party.

In support of this Application, Applicants show the following:

! A draft copy of the proposed Merger instrument is attached as Exhibit "A”.
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I. THE PARTIES

1. Network Long Distance, Inc. is a publicly held Delaware corporation with principal
offices located at 525 Florida Street, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70801. Network is a non-dominant
carrier that resells domestic and international long distance service purchased from various facilities
based carriers pursuant to the FCC's Comperitive Carrier policies.

2. Network is authorized by the FCC to offer domestic interstate and international
services in all fifty (50) states and the District of Columbia as a non-dominant carrier. Network
currently originates interstate traffic in forty nine (49) states, and provides intrastate service, pursuant
to certification, registration or tariff requirements, or on an unregulated basis, in forty nine (49)
states, Network is a certificated carrier in the State of Florida.?

3. United Wats, Inc. isa corporation and a 100% wholly owned subsidiary of Network
with principal offices located at 7000 Squibb, Suite 310, Mission, 66202. UWI is a non-dominant
carrier that resells domestic and international long distance service purchased from various facilities
based carriers pursuant to the FCC's Competitive Carrier policies.

4. UWI is authorized by the FCC to offer domestic interstate and international services
in all fifty (50) states and the District of Columbia as a non-dominant carrier. UWI currently
originates interstate traffic in forty eight (48) states, and provides intrastate service, pursuant to
certification, registration or tariff ruquirements, or on an unregulated basis, in forty eight (48) states.

UWI is a certificated carrier in the State of Florida.’

8 In Florida, Network provides intrastate telecommunications services pursuant to Certificate of
Public Convenience and Necessity bearing Certificate Number 3178 issued in matter entitled “Application form for
Authority 1o Provide Interexchange Telecommunications Service Within the State of Florida,” Docket Number
930249-T1; Order Number PSC-93-0857-FOF-TI, effective date June 30, 1993,

4 In Florida, UWI1 provides intrastate telecommunications services pursuant to Certificate of Public
Convenience and Necessity lssued in matter entitled "Application for Authority to Provide Interexchange
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II. DESIGNATED CONTACT
5. The designated contact for questions concerning this Application is:
Benjamin W. Bronston, Esquire
Nowalsky, Bronston & Gothard, L.L.P.
3500 North Causeway Boulevard
Suite 1442
Metairie, Louisiana 70002
(504) 832-1984
6. Copies of such correspondence should be sent to:
Timothy Barton, President
Network Long Distance, Inc.
525 Florida Street
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70801
(504) 343-3125

and

David Ferdman, Chief Operating Officer

United Wats, Inc.

7000 Squibb, Suite 310

Mission, Kansas 66202

(913) 262-3730

III. THE MERGER
7. In the past several years, Network has acquired the assets and/or merged with several

companies that provide intrastate telecommunication services pursuant to Certificates of Public
Convenience and Necessitv in various states. In this instance, Network proposes to continue to its
" consolidation plans by merging UWI, the previously acquired entity, with and into Network, thereby

creating one larger parent corporation. By virtue of this transaction, Network will realize significant
economic, marketing and administrative efficiencies.

Telecommunications Service in Florida,” Docket Number 740919-T1; Order Number PSC-94-1483-FOF-TI,
effective date December 1, 1994,
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8. As a company providing intrastate telecommunications service directly in forty nine
(49) states, with annual operating revenues of approximately one hundred ten ($1 10,000,000) dollars,
Network is well-qualified to consummate the transaction which is the subject of this Application,
Current financial information for Network is attached hereto as Exhibit "B" 4

9. UWI, which provides intrastate telecommunications service directly in forty eight
states, contributes approximately thirty million ($30,000,000) dollars to Network's overall operating
revenues. Current financial information for UW] is included in Exhibit “B".

10.  Applicants propose a Merger transaction as follows:

(@)  Network shall merge UWI. its 100% wholly owned subsidiary corporation,
with and into Network pursuant to the short form parent-subsidiary rules of
the State of Delaware;

(b)  All of UWI's issued and outstanding common stock shall be cancelled and
extinguished as part of the Merger;

(€)  The separate existence of UW] shall cease after the Merger, with Network
remaining as the surviving corporation; and

(d)  Network will ransfer all of the present customer accounts of UW] 1o
Nﬂwork,mdmnﬁnuewundceﬂwucustomm through and pursuant to the
Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity presently utilized by
Network in its service of its existing customers in the State of Florida, to the
extent permitted by this Commission. Upon consummation of the proposed
Merger, Network intends to notify all current end users of UWI of the event
and also of any change in rates due 1o the alignment of two or more different
rate products into a single rate product for common services, by ecither a
separate mailing or by a bill insert. To the extent that any present UWI rate
products are not included in Network's Tariffs on file with the Commission,
Network will amend its Tariffs accordingly. As such, the transaction should
not cause any inconvenience or confusion to the pre-existing customers of
cither UWI or Network.

" mwn-a'nm-mmlrmm-xmmmnnser;bywmmrwmemm
March 31, 1997,
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11.  Thetechnical, managerial and financial personnel of Network and UWI will remain
the same after the transaction, and will continue to serve their respective customers with their present
high level of exy :rtise.

IV. PUBLIC INTEREST CONSIDERATIONS

12.  Critical to the proposed Merger is the need to ensure the continuation of high quality
service 1o all customers currently served by both Network and UWI. The proposed transaction will
serve the public interest for the following reasons:

(a)  Itwill enable the companies to operate with a more streamlined and efficient
level of service for all involved customers by creating a larger parent
operation. The transaction will enhance the operating efficiencies, including
market efficiencies, of both Applicants.

(b)  Additionally, it will result in cost savings because of discounts on quantity
ordering of mateiials and services.

(¢)  Accordingly, the proposed Merger will serve to create a heightened level of
operating efficiency which generally will serve to enhance the overall
capacity of Applicants to compete in the marketplace and to provide
telecommunications services for a greater number of Florida customers at
competitive rates and under one brand identity.

13.  The proposed transaction will be beneficial for the sharcholders of Network, as the
Merger will consolidate the operations of UWI, Network's 100% wholly owned subsidiary, with and
into Network.

14.  In addition, Network, as well as its customers and those of UWI, will benefit from

the enhanced economies of scale and operating efficiencies, as is explained above.

V. CONCLUSION
15.  Commission approval is requested for the proposed Merger of UWI with and into its
parent corporation, Network. This transaction will result in cost savings because of discounts on
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quantity ordering of materials and services for both companies, and will streamline the level of
service for all involved customers, creating one brand identity for customers of both UWI and
Network. At the same time, approval of the proposed Merger will not in any way be detrimental 1o
the public interests of the State of Florida because the customers of both Network and UWI will
continue to receive the same high quality service presently rendered to them and no party to the
transaction between Network and UWI will be given undue advantage over any other party.

16. WHEREFORE, for the reasons stated herein, Applicants respectfully request that the

Commission authorize Network and UWT to consummate the proposed Merger described above.

DATED this _[éﬂ.day of December, 1997.

Respectfully submitted,

Y

Benjamin W. Bronston, Esquire
Nowalsky, Bronston & Gothard, L.L.P.
3500 North Causeway Boulevard

Suite 1442

Metairie, Louisiana 70002

(504) 832-1984
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EXHIBIT A




CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP AND MERGER
OF
UNITED WATS, INC.,
A KANSAS CORPORATION
INTO
NETWORK LONG DISTANCE, INC.
A DELAWARE CORPORATION

it is hereby certified that:

1. The constituent business corporations participating in the merger herein
certified are )

(i) United Wats, Inc., which is incorporated under the laws of the State
of Kansas; and

(i)  Network Long Distance, Inc., which is incorporated under the laws of
the State of Delaware.

2. Network Long Distance, Inc. is the parent corporation of United Wats, Inc.
Network Long Distance, Inc. owns 100% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of
United Wats, Inc. The number of outstanding shares of United Wats, Inc. is all
of which are of one class, and all of which are owned by Network Long Distance, Inc.

3. A Plan of Merger has been approved, adopted, certified, executed, and
acknowiedged by each of the aforesaid constituent business corporations in accordance
with the provisions of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, to wit, by
United Wats, Inc. in accordance with the laws of the State of its incorporation and by
Network Long Distance, Inc. in the same manner as is provided in General Corporation
Law of the State of Delaware.

4, The name of the surviving corporation in the merger herein certified is
Network Long Distance, Inc., which will continue its existence as said surviving corporation
under its present name upon the effective date of said merger pursuant to the provisions
of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

5. The Certificate of Incorporation of Network Long Distance, Inc., as now in full
force and effect, shall continue to be the Certificate of Incorporation of said surviving
corporation until amended and changed pursuant to the provisions of the General
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.




6. The Plan of Merger between the aforesaid corporations is on file at the
principal place of business of the aforesaid surviving corporation, the address of which is
as follows: 525 Florida Avenue, Baton Rouge, Louisiana, 70801.

7: A copy of the aforesaid Plan of Merger will be furnished by the aforesaid
surviving corporation, on request, and without cost, to any stockholder of each of the
aforesaid constituent corporations.

8.  The Plan of Merger between the aforesaid constituent corporations provides
that the merger herein certified shall be effective at upon filing of this Certificate of Merger
with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware.

9. Shareholder approval was not required for the merger.

Dated:

Network Long Distance, Inc.

By:
Name: Timothy Barton
Title: President
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' SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549 EXHIBIT B

FORM 10-K

[X) ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TC SECTION 13 CR 15 1) CF
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT QF 123

[FEE REQUIRED])

For the Fiscal Year ended: March 31, 1287
CR

[1] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

[NO FEE REQUIRED]

For the transition period from 1o

Commission File No. 0-23172

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

—Dplawars 72:1122018
{State or Other Jurisdiction of {I.R.S. Employer Identi-
Incorporation or Organization) fication Number)

11817 Canon Blvd., Suite 600

(Address of Principal Executive om.:l:.

Including Zip Codel

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (757) B73-1040
Secunnes registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: None.
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(gl of the Act: Yes

Commaon Stock, .0001 Par Value Per Share
{Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark whather the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant
was required 1o file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes _ X No __

As of June 25, 1887, 13,094,088 shares of common stock were outstanding. The aggregate market value of the
common stock of Network Long Distance, Inc. (the "Company®| held by nonaffiliates as of June 25, 1997 was

£48,544,7395,

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinguent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation 5-K (Section 229.40%
of this chapter) is not contained herein, and will net be contained, to the best of Registrant's knowledge, in definitive
araxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part 1ll of this Form 10-K ar any amendment to this

Farm 10-K. [X]

Documents incorporated by referer te: Part Ill incorparates cariain information by reference friom the Registrant's
definitive proxy statement for the annual meeting of stockholder which will be filad no later than 120 days arter the
close of the Registrant's fiscal year anded March 31, 1997,

This Form 10-K consists of __ pages. Exhibits are indexed at page 18.




PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

Genaral

Network Long Distance, Inc., a Delaware corporation, directly and through its subsidianes (“the Company”), 15 a
provider of long distance and other telecommunicaton services 1o end-users, independent agents, and other long
distan=e companies, with a primary concentration on small to medium-sized businesses.

The Company is recognized as a pioneer in the U.S, telecommunications industry, as its predecesso’ company was
established in and has been in continuous operation since 1878, a full five years prior to the court-ordered break-up
of the AT&T/Bell System, an event generally regarded as the “birth™ of the competitive long distance industry in the

u.s.

Cwver the past thres years, the company has expanded substantially through mergers, acquisitions, and its own sales
programs to become a nationwide, telecommunications provider. The Company transmits long distance telephone
calls over various types of transmission circuits leased from other telecommunications carriers at fixed or varnable
rates. Calls may be routed through one the Company's four (4) switching centers, which select the least expensive
amang the various available transmission alternatives to complete the call or calls can be completed by vanous
underlying carriers. The Company provides billing, customer service and other features relative to the call. Profits
are based on the Company's ability to charge rates in excess of the Company's cost of transmitting calls over the
transmission lines selected by the switching equipment or in excess of underlying carrier costs.

The Company offers a wide range of products and services including *1 plus® domestic long distance service,
inbound (800] service, dedicated access and private line service, travel cards, conference calling, paging, prepad
calling cards, wireless services and national internet access service.

The long distance industry is dominated by those companies which comprise the first tier of the industry, those
companies with annualized revenues in excess of $1 billion, such as AT&T, MCI, Sprint, and WorldCom. The second
tier is comprised of companies under 81, billion but in excess of $100 million in annualized revenues. The third tier
consists of those companies with annualized revenues of under $100 million. The Company is a second tier
company as a result of its acquisitions completed subseguent to March 31, 1997 (see Mergers),

History

The Company was formed on December 3, 1987, under the name Harmoney Street Capital, Inc. and was primarily
in the business of seeking business opportunities and a merger candidate. To this end, on December 19, 1990, the
Company acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of M.M. Ross, Inc.. 8 private Louisiana corporation formed in
1979. Since 1980, the Company has continued 1o expand its services and customer base and is now primarily a
long distance telecommunications company. Accordingly, in August, 1881, the Company changed its name to
Network Long Distance, inc. to more accurately refiect its operations.

Recent Developments

Mergers

On June 30, 1996, Network Long Distance, Inc, [Network), merged with Long Distance Telecom, Inc. dba Siue Fidge
Telephor~ (Biue Ridge) and in connection therewith issued 337,079 shares of common stock for all of Blue Ridge's
common stock. On Noevember 15, 1986, Network merged with United Wats, Inc. (United Wats) and in connection
therewith issued 2,277,780 shares of common stock for all of United Wats' common stock. (Both transactions will
be collectively referred to as the "Mergers.”) The Mergers were accourited for as pooling-of-interests.

Subsequent to March 31, 1997, the Company made several strategic moves towards accomplishing its goals and
to berter position itself to remain competitive in the telecommumications industry.




Durng May of 1997, the Company compieted two mergers; Eastern Telecom, imernational (ETI) for §1.5 million cash
and the issuance of approximately 3,633,000 shares of common stock and National Teleservices. Inc (NTI} by

issuing approximately 3,274,000 shares of comman stock. As a result of these transactions, the Company
positioned itself within the second tier (over 3100 million in annual sales) of the industry tased on pro forma fiscal
1887 revenues. The acguisition of ET| will be accounted for 2s a purchase while the mergar with NTI will oe
aceounted for as a pooling-of-nterests. (Both ransactions will collectively be known as the "Subsequent Mergers® |

£Tlis a switch-based inter-axchange carrier located in Newport News, Virginia and operates gpnimarily along the sas;
coast of the United States. It has expanded rapidly through the deployment of an aggressive direct sales program.
It operates a Northern Telecom DMS 250 digital switch which is located in Washington, D.C., and offers *1° plus
direct dialing, "0" plus operator assisted calls, BOO/BBE toll free service, dedicated lines, calling cards, international
service, prepaid calling cards, paging, internet access, and conference calling.

NTI is a switch-based inter-exchange carrier located in Winona, Minnesota, and operates primarily in the mid-western
United States. As with ETI, it has also expanded rapidly through direct sales. It operates a DEC 600 digita! switzh
located in Winona and offers a full range of telecommunication products and services.

The following unaudited pro forma combined results of operations assume the acquisitions of ETI, NTI and other
acquisitions consummated during fiscal 1997 were completed on Apnl 1, 1996:

Year Ended
March 31, 1987 £
Revenue $108,018,000
Nert loss (8,735,000}
Loss per share (0.68)

These pro forma amounts represent the historical operating results of these acquired entities combined with those
of the Company with appropriate adjustments which give effect to interest expense, amortization and the common
shares issued. These pro forma amounts are not necessarily indicative of the operating results that would have
occurred if the combined entities had been operated by current managemant during the period presented because
these amounts do not reflect full network optimization and the synergistic effect on cperating, selling, general and
administrative expenses; nor do they pdrport to indicate results which may be attained in the future.

Pro forma samings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amartization and non-cash provisions to reduce the carrying
value of certain intangible assets ([EBITDA) were $3,289,000. (Pro forma EBITDA is provided because EBITDA is a
measure commonly used in the industry, EBITDA is not a measurement of financial performance under generally
accepted accounting principles and should not be considered an alternative to net income as a measure of
performance or 10 cash flow as a measure of liguidity. EBITDA is not necessarily comparable with similarly titled

measures for other companies.)
Consolidavion of Operations

Atter completion of the above two transactions, the Company was made up of five independent operating entities;
Network Long Distance, Inc., United Wats, Blue Ridge, ETl and NTI. The Company has determined 10 undertake the
consalidation of the operations of these entities.

Inchuded in this plan is the consclidation of all corporate functions including management, accounting and finance,
gilling and networking functions, and certain customer service and support functions. The consolidation of these
functions ‘s scheduled 10 tike place during the first two quarters of fiscal year 1988.

In May 1997, the Board of Directors elected John D. Crawford to the position of Chairman and Chiel Executive
COtficer. Mr. Crawford previously served in this capacity with ETI. Timathy A. Barton, who was previously elected
Fresident, will continue in this capacity. Mr. Barton previously served in this capacity with United Wats. Thomas
G. Keefe was elected Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Company. Mr. Keefe previously served in this
capacity with ETI. John V. Leaf was slected to the position of Secretary. Mr. Leaf previously served as President
ang CE20 of NTI. The primary focus of the Board of Directors of the Company was to put into place a manageament
team which it believed could complete the overall consolidation of the cperating companies and to develop and
impiemeant a strategic plan which will allow the Company to remain competitive in the industry

N
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in addition to management changes, there have been several changes to the Board of Directors of the Company
John D. Crawford, Thomas G. Keefe, John V. Leaf, and Albert A. Woodward, an attorney with the firm of Maun ang
Simon in Minneapolis. MN, have joined the Board. Marc |. Becker and Dr. Joseph M, Edelman have resigned trom

the Board.
Sirategic Pian

A long standing goal of the Company has been to reach a volume of revenues that would enable it to be classified
as a second tier telecommunications comgany with annual revenues in excess of $§100 million. As a resuit cf ine
acquisitions of ETI and NTI subsequent to March 31, 1887, pro forma annual revenues exceedec $108 million for
the year ended March 31, 1987, Eased on the pro forma revenues, the Company has acteeved its opjective and will
iocus fts future efforts to improve prefitability and cash flows while continuing to grow revenues. To achieve these
pbisctives, the Company has implemented plans to consolidate its operations as discussed under *Consolidation of

Operations.”
Reduction of Transmission Costs

Through increased economies of scale, expansion of “on-net” origination and termination of traffic, and greater
purchasing power resulting from the mergers, the Company expects 1o reduce transmission costs as a percentage
of revenue.

Revenue Growth

To continue its revenue growth, the Company will focus its efforts on internal sales. Over the past three years, the
Company has primarily grown through mergers and acquisitions. Although the Company will continue 1o seek merger
opportunities, this strategy is not expected 10 be the pnmary vehicie for revenue growtn. Currently, the Company
has three distinct sales distribution channels through which the Company markets it products and services: Rerail
or direct business sales, agents, and association programs, (see SALES AND MARKETING). The Company plans
to direct it attention to the business retail and association program distribution channels in an effort to aggressively
grow revenue through internal sales.

Sales and Marketing

The Company has three prima-y sales distribution channels within its long distance telecommunications marketing
program: the agent, business retail, and association programs. The Company primarily focuses its e*forts and
expansion philosophy on the retail and association program channels, where the Company believes it can realize
preater orofit margins and maintain better control of its customer base. Approximately fifty parcent of all emplavees
are direct business retail sales personnel.

Business Ratail

The Company's retail division currently concentrates on commercial customers, which use long distance services
maore frequently on weekdays during normal business hours, as compared 10 residential users who tend to place calls
more frequently at night and on weekends when rates are lower. The Company believes that commercial customers
tend to use long distance services more often and generaste more billable minutes than residential users. The
Company currently has retail sales offices in Louisiana, Virginia, Minnesota, Wisconsin, lowa, South Dakota, North
Danota, Nebraska, New Jersey, Pennsylvania, Maryland, District of Columbia and lllinois. The Company primarily
targets commercial customers with monthly phone charges of approximately $200 to $10,000. The Company plans
to expand and further develop its retail sales force through the hiring of additional representatives.

Associetion Programs

The Company has a program whereby it establishes exclusive marketing agreements with vanous trade or business
associations to market its products and services to the members of the association. Under this program the
Company, in conjunction with the association, will saiicit the members of the association 1o subscribe 10 the services
of the Company primarily through telemarketing and direct mall campaigns. In exchange, the Company pays the
association a royalty based on the level of monthly revenues generated by the memoers af the association.




Agent

Master agents sign non-exclusive contracts with the Company o represent the Company and sell its long distance
services to end-users. The agents are paid a variable commission on each service soid. The Company intends 1o
maintain this channel, but will pnmarily devote s marketng resources in the future to its business retail anc

association programs.

Rates and Charges

Management expects that its rates will generally remain competitive with rates chargea by long distance carriers
such as ATAT, MC! and Sprint and other comman carriers. The savings realized by customers of the Company and
other long distance carriers may decrease in the future if, an’ to the extent, AT&T further reduces its rates. See
“Competition” and "Regulation.”

The Company charges its customers on the basis of minutes or partial minutes of use at rates which may vary with
the distance, duration, time of day and type of call. The Company performs its own billing functions for most of s
customer base, and also uses independent billing companies to invoice certain customers in conjunction with their
local and long distance telephone bills.

Facilites

The Company's facilities are 100% leased, digital fiber optic transmission facilities. Primary fiber optic vendors for
the Company include WilTel and MCI. These facilities are utilized primarily by the Company for the provisioning of
its own telecommunications network. Facilities are also leased on behalf of the Company's customers to provide
private customer connections to the network. The Company leases these facilities at rates which are less than those
charged to its customers for the use of these facilities. In addition to the vendors named above, facilities from Bell
Atlantic, Bell South, Ameritech, US West, NYNEX and MFS are an integral part of the Company’s network.

The continued availability of cost-effective digital, fiber optic transmission facilities in the Company’s service areas,
as well as proper planning of the utilization of leased transmissions facilities, is critical 1o the Company's ability to

provide its services on a profitable bui'a. &

The Company contracts with other underlying telecommunications carriers to provide originating and terminating
transmigsion of calls in area’s where the Company does not deploy their own facilities. These facilines are carrier
facilives and do not carry a fixed monthly cost. The Company pays the carrier, on & per minute basis, for any calls
which are transmitted over these facilities.

MNetwork Switching

The Company's computerized network switching equipment routes the calls to their destinations on a least cost route
basis, over the leased transmission facilities. In addition to netwaorking, the Company's switching equipment verifies
the customer's preassigned authorization code, or the telephone number called from. It alse records billing data,
tests transmission facilities and monitors systemn quality and performance. After the Subsequent Mergers, the
Company has four switches, 10 which its leused and carrier facilities are connected. These switches are located in
Baton Rouge, Louisiana, Washington, D.C,, Winona. Minnesota and Culpeper, Virginia.

The Company believes that digital switches are generally superior 1o other currently available types of switches.
Dignal switches are able to interface with the digital ransmission facilities leased by the Company and are able to
handle multiple transmission channels on a single line, thereby reducing transmission cosis. A digital switch also
provides supefior quality and sase of maintenance.

Mergers and Acquisitions Program

The Company has completed the acquisition of customer bases primarily located in Texas, New Jersey, Louigiana,
MNew York, Nevada, Oklahoma, California, Utah, and lllinois.




in agdition to the customer bases noted above and the mergers with ETI and NTI, the Company has completea
mergers with Biue Ridge and United Wats. Both companies have historically experienced strong internal growth from
their respective sales distribution channels and are expected to continue these trends. Although the Company plans
1o continue evalusting opporunities that may arnse, the Company does ot intend to solely look towards mergars
and acquisitions 1o grow the Company. (see "Recent Developments®.|

Camperition

The Company competes with numerous interexchange carriers and resellers, some of which are substanually larger,
have substantially greater financial, technical and marketing resources, or utilize larger transmission sysiems than
the Company. AT&T is the dominant supplier of long distance services in the United States InterLATA market. The
Company also competes with other naticnal interexchange carniers, such as MCI, Sprint, WorldCom and regional long
distance telecommunications companies. Under the Telecommunications Act of 1986 (Telecom Act) and ensuing
federal and state regulatory initiatives, the introduction of iocal exchange competition establishes the predicate for
the Regional Bell Operating Companies (RBOCs) to provide in-region interexchange long distance services. The
ABOCs are currently allowed to offer certain "incidental® long distance service in-region and 1o offer out-of-region
long distance services. Once the RBOCs are allowed to offer in-region long distance services, they could be in a
position to offer single source local and long distance service.

The Company believes that the principal competitive factors affecting its market share are pricing, transmission
guality, customer service, cost of underlying facilities and, to a lesser extent, value added services.

The Company believes that it competes effectively with other interexchange carriers and resellers in its service areas
on the basis of these factors. The ability of the Company to compete effectively will depend upon its continued
ability 1o mninuh high quality, market oriented m at prices c_ﬁmplﬂtivt with those charged by its competitors.

The Company's objective is to continue to expand its customer base primarily through its business retail and
association program marketing channels. The Company believes this strategy. in conjunction with the increased

purchasing power resulting from its recent mergers (see "Recent Developments®), will enable it to continue to obtain
favorable contracts from its suppliers which will aliow it to maintain adequate margins while offering highly

competitive prices for its services. The Cu-rulmf maintains its own in-house billing and customer service operations,
which along with its ability to offer wﬂﬁu price, provides the Company the flexibility to tailor its services to
meet the ever changing communication needs of its customers. However, no assurance can be given that the

Company's strategies will continue to be successful.

The Company expects to encounter increased competition from both the major communication companies and the

smalier regional companies... ln addition, the Company.may be subject to additional.compatition due tothe enactment ..

of the Telecom Act and the development of new technologies. The telecommunications industry is in a period of
rapid evolution marked by the introduction of new products and services and the changing regulatory environment.
The Company believes its strategies will put it in a position to continue to effectively compete in this industry.

Government Regulation

The terms and conditions under which the Company provides telecommunications products and services are subject
10 government regulation. Federal lavis and Federal Communications Commission (FCC) regulations apply to
interstate and international telecommunications, while particular state regulstory authorities have jurisdiction over
telecommunications that originate and terminate within the same state.

Federal Regulation

The Company is classified by the FCC as a non-dominant camier, and therefore is subject to significantly reduced
federal regulation. After the recent reclassification of ATAT as a non-dominant carrier in its provisions of domestic
services, only the Local Exchange Carriers (LESS) are classified as dominant carriers for the provision of interstate
sccess services. As 8 consequence, the FCC regulates many of the rates, charges, and services of the LECs 10 a
gteater degree than the Company's. The FCC has proposed that the Regional Bell Operating Comparues of REOCs
offering out-of-region interstate inter-exchange services be regulated as non-dominant carniers, 2s long as such
sarvices are offered by an aHiliate of the RBOC that complies with certain structural separation reguirements, which
may make it easier for the RBOCs to compete directly with the Company for long distance subscribers. These would
be the same separation requirements that currently are applicable to independent LECs that provide interstate
inter-exchange services, a..hough the FCC on March 21, 1996 initiated a rule-making proceeding in which it 15
considering whether to modify or eliminate these separation reguirements.
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, Because AT&T is no longer classified as a dominant carmer, cenain pricing restrictions that formerly applied to ATAT
have been eliminated, which may make it easier for AT&T to compete with the Company for low volume long
distance subscribers. Non-dominant carriers are currently required to file international tanitfs. The FCC generally
does not exercise direct oversight over cost jurisdiction and the level of charges for service of non-dominant carriers,
such as the Company, although it has the statutory power to do so. Non-dominant carriers are required by statute
1o offer interstate and international services under rates, terms, and conditions that are just, reascnable, and not
unduly discriminatory. The FCC has the junsdiction 10 act upon comgplaints filed by third parties or brought on the
FCC's own motion against any commaon carner, including non-dominant carners, for failure to comply with s
swanstory obligations. Additionally, the Telecom Act grants explicit autharity 1o the FCC to “forbear™ from regulating
any telecommunications services provider in response 1o a petition and if the agency setermines that the public
interest will be served. On October 31, 1986, the FCC exercised this authority and released an order which, among
other things, requires non-dominant Interexchange Carriers (IXCs) to cancel their currently-filed tariffs for interstate
domestic services within nine months of the effective date of the order and prohibits such filings in the future.

The FCC imposes only minimal reporting requirements on non-deminant resellers, although the Company is subject
1o cerain reporung, accounting, and record keeping obligations. A number of these requirements are imposed, at
least in part, on all carriers, and others are imposed on certain carriers, such as those whose annual operating
revenues exceed 5100 million.

On February 8, 1988, President Clinton signed the Telecom Act, which permits, without limitation, the RBOCs 10
provide domestic and international long distance services to customars located outside of the RBOCs home regions:
permits a petitioning RBOC to provide domestic and international long distance service to customers within its home
regions upon a finding by the FCC that a petitioning RBOC has satisfied certain criteria for opening up its local
exchange network to competition and that its provision of long distance services would further the public interest;
and remove existing barriers to entry into local service markets. Additionally, there are significant changes in tha
manner in which carrier-to-carrier arrangements are regulated at the federal and state level; procedures 1o revise
universal service standards; and, penalties for unauthorized switching of customers. The FCC has instituted

preceedings addressing the implementation of this legisiation.

On August 8, 1998, the FCC released its First Repart and Order in the Martter of Implementation of the Local
Competition Provisions in the Telecom Act the FCC Interconnect Order, In the FCC Interconnect Order, the FCC
established nationwide rules designed to encourage new entrants to participdte In the local service markets through
interconnaction with the incumbent local exchange carriers (ILEC), resale of the ILECs retail services and unbundied
network elements. Thess rues set the groundwork for the statutory criteria governing RBOC entry into the long
distance market. The Company cannot predict the effect such legislation or the implementing regulations will have
on the Company or tha industry. Motions to stay implementation of the FCC Interconnect Order have been filed
with the FCC and federal courts of appeal. Appeals challenging, among other things, the validity of the FCC
Iinterconnect Order have been filed in several federal courts of appeal and assigned to the Eighth Circuit Court of
Appeals for disposition. The Eighth Circuit Court .of Appeals has stayed the pricing provisions of the FCC
Interconnect Order. The United States Supreme Court has declined to review the propriety of the stay. The
Company cannot predict either the outcome of these challenges and appeals or the eventual effect on its business

or the industry in general,

On December 24, 1896, the FCC released a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking (NPRM) seeking 1o reform the FCC's
current access charge policies and practices to comport with a competitive or potentially competitive local access
service market. On May 7, 1987, the FCC announced that it will issue a series of orders that reform Universal
Services Subsidy allocations, adopt various reforms to the existing rate structure for interstate access that are
designed to reduce access charges, over time, to more sconomically efficient levels and rate structures. In particular,
the FCC adopted changes to its rate structures for Common Line, Local Switching and Local Transport rate elaments.
The FCC generally removed from minute-of-use access charges costs that are not incurred on a per-minute-of-use
basis, with such costs being recovered through flat rated charges. Additional charges and details of the FCC's
actions are to be addressed when Orders are released within the near future. Access charges area principal
component of the Company's transmission costs. The Compuny cannot predict whether or not the result of this
proceeding will have a material impact upon its financial position or results of cperations,
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State Regulation

The intrastate long distance telecommunications of the Company are also subject to varous state laws and
regulauons, including prior certification, notification, and registration requirements. Generally, the Company must
gbtain and maintain certificates of public convenience and necessity from regulatory authorities in most states in
which it offers intrastate long distance services. In most of these junsdictions the Company must also file ang obiain
prior regulatory approval of tariffs for its intrastate offerings. Currently, the Company 15 certified and tanffed wneie
required 1o provide intrastate service to customers in the continental United States.

There can be no assurance that the regulatory authorities in one or more of the states wil. not take action hawing
an adverse efect on the business or financial condition of the Company.

Risk Factors

Current and prospective investors should carefully consider the following risk faciors, together with the other
information contained in this Form 10-K, in evaluaung the Company and its business. In particular, readers shouid
note that this Form 10K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Secuntes Litgation
Reform Act of 19985 and that actual results could differ materially from those contemplated by such statements.
The factors listed below represent certain important factors the Company believes could cause such resuits to differ.
These factors are not intended to represent a complete list of the general or specific risks that may affect the
Company. It should be recognized that other risks may be significant, presently or in the future, and the risks set
forth below may atfect the Company to a greater extent than indicated. .

Dependance on Carriers and the Availabiiity of Transmission Facilities not Assured

Ihe Company's long distance business is depencent upon lease or resale arrangements with fiber-optic ana digital
microwave carriers for the transmission of calls. The future profitability of the Company is bassd upon its ability to
transmit long distance telephone calls over transmission facilities leased from others on a cost-effective basis. The
Company Is currently dependent on three primary carriers, Frontier Communications Services, Inc., WorldCom
Network Services, Inc. [*"WilTel") and Sprint. The Company utilizes other fiber-optic carriers to a lesser extent to
supplement communication transport seryices, however, there can be no asgurance that in the future the Company
will continue to have access on an ongoing basis, to transmission facilities at favorable rates.

Adverse Effect of Service Intvrruption

The Company's business requires that transmission and switching facilities and other equipment be operational 24
hours per.cay, 3685 days peryear. Long distance telephone companies, includirg the Company, have on occasion
and may in the future experience temporary service interruption or equipment failure, in some cases resulting from
causes beyond their control. Any such event experienced by the Company would impair the Company’s ability to
service its customers and could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business.

Recent Losses from Operations

The Company incurred a loss of (7,854,000} ‘or the fiscal year ended March 31, 1887. The loss for the fiscal 1997
was primarily due to the reduction in the carrying value of certain assets, an increase in seliing, general and
administrative expenses, and the provision for losses on accounts receivable. Although the Company will antempt
to at..in profitability as its recent acquisitions are integrated more fully into the Company's operations, there i3 no
assurance that this will occur or that the Company will achieve, or be able to sustain profitable operations.

Competition Risks

The Company faces excess competition in providing long distance telecommunications services. The Company
competes for imerLATA and InterLATA services with ATAT, MCI, Sprint and WoridCom, the LESS and other national
and regional IXCs, where permissible, Certain of these companies have substantially greater market share and
financial resources that the Company. and some of them are the source of communizations capacity used by the
Campany to provida Its own services.

The Company expects to encounter continued competition from major domestic communications companies,
inchuding ATE&T, MCI, Sprint ari. WorldCom. In addition, the Company may be subject to additional competition due
10 the enactment of the Telecom Act, the development of new technalogies and increased availability of domestuc
transmission capacity.
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Foo'example, even though fiber-optic networks are now widely used for long distance transmission, it IS possible that
the desirability of such networks could be adversely affected by changing technology. The telecommunications
industry is in a period of rapid technological evolution, marked by the intreduction of new product and service
cffenngs and increasing satellite and fiber-optic transmission capacity for services similar to those prowided by the
Company, The Company cannot predict which of many possible future produc: and service offerings will be
impartant 1o maintain its competit.ve position or what expenditures will be required to develop and provide such

products and services.

Virtually all markets for telecommunications services are extremely competitive, and the Company expects that
competimon will intensify in the future. In each of the markets in which it offers telecommunicatiors services, the
Company faces significant competition from larger, better financed incumbent carriers. The Company competes with
incumbent providers, which have historically dominated their local telecommunications markets, and lang distance
carriers, for the provision of long distance services. In certain markets the incumbent provider affers bath local and
long distance services. The incumbent LESS presently have numerous advantages as a result of their hustonc
monopoly control of the local exchange market. A continuing trend toward business combinations and alliances in
the telecommunications industry may create significant new competitors to the Company. Many of the Company's
existing and potential competitors have financial, personnel and other resources significantly greater than those of
the Company. The Company also faces competition in most markets in which it operates from one or more
competitors, including competitive access providers (*CAPS®) operatng fiber-optic networks, in some cases in
conjunction with the local cable television operator. Each of AT&T, MCI, Sprint and WorldCom has indicated its
intention to offer local telecommunications services in major U.S. markets using its own facilities or by resale of the
LESS' or other providers' services. Other potential competitors include cable television companies, wireless
telephone companies, electric utiities, microwave carriers and private networks of large end users. |n addition, the
Company competes with telecommunications management companies with respect to certain portions of its
business,

Under the Telecom Act and ensuing federal and state regulatory initiatives, barriers to local exchange competition
are being removed. The introduction of such competition, however, also establishes the predicate for the RBOCs
1o provide in-region interexchange long distance services. The RBOCs are currently allowed to offer certain
*Incidental” long distance services in-region and to offer out-of-region long distance services. Once the RBOCs are
allowed to offer inregion long distance p-ruir.-u. both they and the four largest long distance carriers (AT&T, MCI,
Sprint and WorldCom) will be in a position to offer single source local and long distance service similar to that being
offered by the Company. The Company expacts that the increased competition made possible by regulatory reform
will result in cerzain pricing and margin pressurs in the domestic telecommunications services business.

Rapid Technological Changes: Dependence upon Product Development

The telecommunications industry is subject to rapid and significant changes in technology. While the Company does
not believe that, for the foreseeable future, these changes will either materially and adversely affect the continued
uss of fiber-optic cable or materially hinder its ability 1o acquire necessary technologies, the effect of technological
changes, including changes relating to emerging wireless and wiraless transmission and switching technalogies, on
the businesses of the Company cannot be predicted,

Risks of Financial Leverage; Debt Service, Interest Rate Fluctuations, Possible Reductions in Liquidity,
and Restrictive Covenants

In May 1996, the Company entered into a $14,250,000 credit facility (1997 Facility] with a bank which includes
a revolving crec.: facility and term loan facility. Borrowings under the 1897 Facility were used to repay an existung
debt facility. Berrawings under the revolving credit portion of the 1987 Facility may not exceed the lessor of
$11,000,000 minus any reduction in amount the lender may deem reouired or B5E% of eligible receivables.
Borrowings under the revolving facility bear interest at the prime rate plus 0.75% (8.0% at March 31, 19871,
Borrowings and unpaid interest on the revolving facility are repayable in full at maturity of the facility on June 1,
1989, At March 31, 1887, borrowings outstanding under the revolving facility were $40,000. Unused borrowing
cagacity under the revolving facility at March 31, 1997 was 38,822,000. As pant of the 1997 Facility, the Company
was aisc allowed to borrow $3,250,000 under a term loan facility. The term lcan is repayable in 36 equal monthiv
instaiiments of $80,278 plus accrued interest. The term loan bears interest at the prime rate plus 3% (11.25% a1
March 31, 1987). At March 31, 1897, the balance outstanding under the term facility was 82,437,000
Substantially all of the assets of the Company including tangibie assets, receivables and general intangibles, the
defimpon of which includes but is not imit~d to intellectual property, business plans, business records and licenses.
ate pleaged as collateral under the 1897 rFacility. The 18997 Facility reguires comgliance with certain financial ang
operating covenants which include minimum leverage and fixed charge coverage ratios.
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' . Because of the operating loss and resulting decline in stockholders’ equity reported by the Company for the year
ended March 31, 1997, the Company was not in compliance with certain financial covenants contained in its bank
credit facility. Accordingly. the Company received a waiver with respect 10 certain of such covenants from its lender
as of March 31, 1097, As a result of and in connection with the merger transactions consummated in May 1867,
the Company complied with certain of the financial covenants, and has negotiated certain amendments 10 the cred:t
facility to refiect changes in financial position and anticipated changes in business strategies and operating resuiis
associnted with such transactions, While management, believes that the Company will be abie 10 comply with the
renegotiated loan agreement, there can be no essurance that the Company will not require agditional waivers in the
tuture of, if such waivers are required, that the lender will grant them.

Dividend Policy

The Company has paid no cash dividends on its Common Stock and has no present intention of paying cash
dividends in the foreseeable future. It is the present policy of the Board of Directors to retain all earnings 10 proviae
for the growth of the company. Payment of cash dividends in the future will depend. among other things. upon the
Company's future earnings, requitements for capital improvements, and operaung and financial condiions of the
Company and other factors deemed relevant by the Board of Directors.

Acguisition Integration

A major portion of the Company's growth in recent years has resulted from acquisitions, which involve certain
operational and financial rigks. Operational risks include the possibility that an acquisition does not ultimately provide
the benefits originally anticipated by management of the acquirer, while the acguirer continues to incur operating
expenses 10 provide the services formerty provided by the acquired company. Financial risks involve the occurrence
of indebtedness by the acquirer in order to effect the acquisition and the subsequent need to service that
indebtedness. In addition, the issuance of stock in connection with acquisitions ailutes the voung power and may
dilute certain other interests of existing shareholders. In carrying out its acquisition strategy, the Company attempts
to minimize the risk of unexpected liabilities and contingencies associated with acquired businesses through planning,
investigation and negotiation, but such unexpected liabilities may nevertheless accompany acquisitions. There can
be no assurance that the Company will be successful in identifying atractive acquisition candidates or completing

additional acquisitions on favorable terms. .

Additionally, achieving the expected benefits of the Subsequent Mergers will depend in part upon the integration of
the businesses of the Company, NTI and ETI, in an efficient manner, and there can be no assurance that this will
oceur. The transition to a combined company will require substantial attention from management. The division of
management activities and any difficulties encountered in the transition process could have an adverse effect on

._revenues and operating results of the combined company. . In addition, the pracess.of rombining..tha various ...

organizations could cause the interruption of, or a disruption in, the activities of any or all of the companies’
businesses, which could have a material adverse effect on their combined operations. There can be no assurance
that the Company will realize any of the anticipated benefits of the Subsequent Mergers.

Based on the foregoing, during fiscal 1997, the Company incurred impairment losses of approximately $6,281,000
on the carrying value of certsn intangible assets.

Conungent Liabilites
The Company is subject to a number of legal and regulatory proceedings. While the Company believes that the
possit'~ outcome of these matters, or all of them combined, will not have a material adverse effect on the

Company's consolidated results of operations or financial position, no assurance can be given that a contrary result
will not be obtained. See ltem 3 - "Legal Proceedings®.

Employees

As of June 25, 1987, the Company had 303 full-time employees. None of the Company’s employees are represented
by a union.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

The Company owns a 4,500 square foot building and leases three floors, containing approximately 22,000 square
feet of a building located at 525 Florida Street, Baton Rouge. Lovisiana, 70BU1. lts pnmary telephone number s
{504) 343-3125. In June, 1997, the Company moved its principal executive offices to Newport News, Virginia ang
raduced its leased space in Baton Rouge 10 approximately 15,000 sguare feer.

In addition to the above properties, the Company leases approximately 7,500 square feer of office space in Mission,
Kansas and approximately 3,800 square feet of office space in Cuipeper, Virginia in which United Wats and Elue
Ridge operate, respectively. Pursuant to recent mergers, the Company acguired leased otfice and switch facilities
from ET| and NTI (see "Recent Developments”).

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

After the end of the fiscal year, on May 21, 1987, the Company was notified that a Director/Shareholder of the
Company has brought suit against the Company. The suit is related to a cerntain escrow agreement previously
entered into with two major shareholders of the Company. The suit seeks the release of common stock in the
Company which was placed into escrow by the Director in relation to the Company's initial public offering completed
in February of 1994. The number of shares in dispute is 313,344, The outcome of the suit and its impact on the
gperations and financial condition of the Company can not be determined at this time. However, the Company
believes that the specific criteria under which the common stock was to be released were not met and therefore
believes that the shares should be returned to the Company and cancelled according to the provisions of the escrow

agreement.
The Company is involved in other legal proceedings generally incidental to its business. While results of thess
various legal matters contain an element of uncertainty, the Company believes that the probable outcome of any of
these matters, or all of them combined, should not have a material adverse effect on the Company.
ITEM 4, SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.
None
&

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

{a) PRINCIPAL MARKET OR MARKETS. Since February 24, 1994, the Company's Common Stock has traded in the |

over-the-counter market and listed in the NASDAQ Smali-Cap Market System under the symbal *"NTWK", The
following table sets forth the high and low sales prices per share of Network Commeon Stock as reported on the
Nasdag Small-Cap Market System for the periods indicated.

High Low
%Oﬂmu $8.00 $5.50
Second Quarter 8.25 7.28
Third Quarter 8.00 7.38
Forth Quarter 9.00 7.63
1888
First Quarner $ 9.38 $7.25
Second Quarter 11.25 7.63
Third Quarter 11.25 9.13
Fourth Quarter 10.00 8.88
First Quarter $12.13 $9.13
Second Quarter 11.83 10.50
Third Quarter 11.38 7.75
Fourth Quarter 8.00 7.00

On June 25, 1887, the closing price for the Common Stock 83 reported by the NASDAC Small-Cap Market was
£10.25 per share.
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"+ (b) 'APPROXIMATE NUMBER OF HOLDERS OF COMMON STOCK. The number of record owners of the Company’s
common stock at March 31, 1897, was approximately 225. This does not include shareholders who hold stock in

their ac~ounts at brokeridealers.

{c) DIVIDENDS. Holders of common stock are entitled to receive such gividends as may be declared Dy the
Company's Board of Directors. No dividends have been paid with respect 10 the Zompany's common stock and no

dividends are anticipated to be paid in the foreseeadie future,

[TEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

Selacted Financial Data: - B :
r
]EQI 1598 1295 1064 1893
Operating Results:
Aevenues $59,609,135 $450B3.191 £29,374,853 $12,134,620 £5,067.502
Operating Income (Loss) (8,032,833} 755,720 1.099,130 452,268 (£3.980)

Income (Loss) before extraordinary
itern and cumulative effect of

a change in accounting principle (7,854 429) 374,497 B67.6514 173.BB6 104,989
Income (Loss) before cumulative effect
of a change in accounting principle (7,854,429) 374,497 B67.6514 173,886 104,969
Net Income (Loss) (7.854,429) 374,497 B67.514 173,886 304,969
Preferred dividend reguirement - - . 31,984 "t
Eamings per commeon share:
Income (Loss) before extraordinary
itern and cumulative effect of
a change in accounting principle (1.30 0.07 0.19 0.04 0.07
income (Loss) before cumulative effect
of a change in accounting principle {1.30) 0.07 0.19 0.04 0.07
Net Income (Loss) (1.20) 0.07 0.19 0.04 0.07
Weighted average shares . 6,064,164 5,079,938 , 4,687,620 3,827,889 4,088,767
Financial position data:
Total assets $18,9563,712 23,311,116 $§11,762,262 1,885,818 #2,366.280
Long-term debt (excluding curremt
maturities) 1,454,256 1,016,619 408,001 296,783 581,447
Siockholders” investment - ‘8,11%,169 13,566.066 7,372,272 6.036.C12- 455.52%
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis relstes to the financial condition and results of operations of the Company for
the three years ended March 31,1997, This information should be read in conjunction with the "Selected Financial
Data” and the Company's Consolidated Financial Statemants appearing elsewhere in this document.

GENERAL

The Company's predecessor corporations commenced oparations in 1979, and since its initial public offering in 1884,
the Company has expanded substantially through mergers, acquisitions and internal growth in its efHorts to become
a nationwide telecommunications provider.

On June 30, 1996, Network Long Distance, Inc. (Network), merged with Long Distance Telecom, inc. dba Blue Ridge
Talephone [Blue Ridge) and in connection therewith issued 337,079 shares of commen stock for all of Blue Ridge's
commen stock. On November 15, 1898, Network merged with United Wats, Inc. (Unitea Wats] and in connection
therewith issued 2,277,780 shares of common stock for all of United Wats' common stock. (Both ransactions will
be collectively referred to as the *“Mergers.”] The Mergers were both accounted for as pooling-of-interests.

Subseguent to March 31, 1897, the Company made several strategic moves towards accomplishing its goi!s and
to better position itself to remain competitive in the telecommunications industry.
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. Dunng May of 1897, the Company completed two mergers; Eastern Telecomn, international (ETI) for 1.5 million cash

and the issuance of approximately 3,633,000 shares of common stock and National Teleservices, Inc INTI) by issuing
approximately 3,274,000 shares of common stock. As a result of these transactions, the Company positioned aself
within the second tier (over $100 million in annual sales) of the industry based on pro forma fiscal 1997 revenues.
The acquisition of ETI will be accounted for as a purchase while the merger with NTI will be accounted for as a

pooling-of-interests,

ETl is a switch-based inter-exchange carrier located in Newport News, Va and operates primarily along the east cocas:
of the United States. It has expanded rapidly through the deployment of an aggressive direct sales program. It
operates a Northem Telecom DMS 250 digital switch which is located in Washington D.C. and otfers "1* plus direct
dialing, "0" plus operator assis.ed calls, 800/888 toll free service, dedicated lines, calling cards, internaticnal service,
prepaid calling cards, paging, intemet access, and conference calling,

NTI is a switch-based inter-exchange carrier located in Winona, Minnesota and operates primarily in the mid-western
United States. As with ETI, it has also expanded rapidly through direct sales. It cperates a DEC 600 digital switch
located in Winona and offers a full range of telecommumication products and services,

After completion of the above two transactions, subsequent to the fiscal year end, the Company was made up of
five indepandent operating entities; Network Long Distance, Inc., United Wats, Blue Ridge, ETI and NTI. The
Company has determined to consolidate the operations of these entities subsequent to the fiscal year end.

Inchuded in this plan is the consolidation of all corporate functions including management, accounting and finance,
billing and netwaorking functions, and certain customer service and support functions. The consolidation of these
functions is scheduled to take place during the first two quarters of fiscal year 1998,

Certain statements set forth in this Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations constitute forward looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1833,
as amended, and are subject to the safe harbor created by such section. When appropriate, certain factors that
could cause results 1o differ materially from those projected in the forward looking statements are enumerated. This
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations should be read in
conjunction with the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto appearing elsewhere in
this Annual Report. 4

Resuits of Operations

The Company's operations have grown significantly over the last three years as a result of its mergers and
acquisitions program_and internal growth. Total revenues, including excise taxes and fees, increased to.358,880,135 .
in 1987, from $45,083,191 in 1996, representing a 32.4% increase. Total revenues in 1898 increased by 53.5%
from $29,374,853 in 1985, The Company has financed this growth primarily through cash flow from aperations,

equity financing, and bank borrowings.

Billable minutes were approximately 348.0 million in 1997, an increase from approximately 278.5 million minutes
in 1996, and approximately 155.4 million minutes in 1995. Revenue per minute (RPM), representing the ratio of total
revenus to total minutes, was approximately $0.172, $0.182 and $0.189 in fiscal 1987, 1996, snd 1895,
respectively. In 1996, the Company de-emphasized its reseller channel. This wraffic typically carries a lower RPM than
other types of traffic. As a result of the reduction in reseller business in 1997, the overall RPM increased. The
decrease in fiscal 1996 when compared to 1995 reflects rate reductions made 1o remain competitive in the market
and wholesale rates provided to resellers. While rate fluctuations have affected the Company’s revenues on a per
minute basis, billable minutes have increased by 25.0% over 1896 billable minutes, whila billable minutes from 1996
10 1995 increased ppproximately 79.2%.

To maintain and improve the Company's competitive position, it may be necessary 1o change the Company's rate
siructure. The Company is unable to predict with accuracy whether or when AT&T or other competitors will
implement future rate reductions or the effect of any such rate reductions on the Company’s profit margins. The
Company anticipates increased billable minutes from its various ales distribution channels to oifset the effects of

any price reductions.




'+ In addition 1o the switch-based network, the Company operates under negotiated contracts with other carners 1o

provide a nationwide platform to originate and terminate traffic. The Company has contracted with marketing
campanies, switchless resellers nnd agents throughout the United States and provides transpart, biling. customer
service, and other support services. Marketing to these types of organizations will continue in the upcoming fiscal
year. Gross margin percentage, defined as the ratio of the excess of revenues over fransmission costs, 15 expecied
10 inzrease along with billable minutes as the percentage of wholesale traffic decreases As of Jure 15, 1387, the
Company is certified and tariffed to provide service subject 1o jurisdictions as required in the continental United
Srates including the District of Columbia.

The Company and other long distance telecommunications companies are affecteg by the FCC's direct regulation
of the rates and operations of AT&T and certain other interexchange carriers with which the Company competes
and from which the Company leases or may lease transmission facilities or may have underlying contracts in place.
Consequently, reductions in the Company's rate structure, as well as the regulatory matters affecung the
telecommunications industry as 8 whole, may impact the Company's future revenues and expenses.

The Company's gross margin percantage in 1987 increased over the prior year with the transmussion cosis as a
percent of revenues decreasing to 68.2% or $0.117 per minute in 1987, resulting in a gross margin percentage of
31.8%. In 1996, transmission costs were 72.2% of revenues or $0.117 per minute, resulting in a gross margin
percernage of 27.8%. The Company's transmission costs as 8 percent of revenue in 1995 were 74.3% or $0.140
per minute, which resulted in a gross margin percentage of 25.7%. The Company has been able to improve its gross
margin during the last three years due to its continued growth in revenues. The increase in revenues has allowed
the Company to negotiate higher volume discounts from its underlying carriers thereby reducing its transmissions
costs as a percent of revenues.

General and administrative and selling expenses were $15,770,980 representing 26.4% of revenues, $9,420,273
representing 20.9% of revenues, and 85,652,103 representing 19.2% of revenues for the years ended March 31,
1887, 1996, and 1995, respectively. The increass in genera’ and administrative and selling expenses as a percentage
of revenues is primarily related to increases in personnel costs, commissions, taxes and professional fees. The
operations of Blue Ridge and United Wats were not consolidated during fiscal 1997 resulting in the duplication of
certain general, administrative and selling functions. Subsequent to March 31, 1887, the Company implemented
a plan to consolidate all corporate functions of these emtities including accounging and finance, billing and networking
functions, and certain customer service and support functions. The consolidation of these functions is scheduled
to take place during the first two quarters of fiscal 1898.

Provision for losses on Accounts Receivable was 83,041,617 representing 5.1% of revenues, $1,112,151
representing 2.5% of revenues, and $403,314 representing 1.4% of revenues for the years ended March 31, 1887,
1996, .and 12985 respectively.. During the year ended March 21, 1997, the:Comgzany datermined that lozses on ..
certain accounts receivable acquired through acquisition transactions were greater than expected at the time of
acquisition. As a result, the Company charged-off or made provision for such accounts receivable to reduce the
carrying amount to the estimated realizable value. During fiscal year 1996, the Company reevaluated its
reseller/wholesale activities generally and specifically its relationship with certain reseliers. As a result, the Company
has chosen to de-emphasize its resellers marketing activities by reducing the number of wholesale customers and
the related wholesale accounts receivable. In addition, certain wholesale customers have experienced financial
difficuities which impede their ability 1o pay the Company on a timely basis. Wholesale customers with slow
payment histories have been placed on specific payment plans or under lock box agreements. The Company has
specifically evaluated its allowance for doubtful accounts, which it provides for throuph its provision for losses on
accounts recervable and believes the allowance to be adeguate to absorb probable losses on the accounts receivable
at *4arch 31, 19687. However, the actual losses on accounts receivable could ditfer from management's evaluation
at March 31, 1897,

Depteciation and amortization expense was $1,902,942 representing 3.2% of revenues, 81,246,826 representing
2.8%, of revenues, and §396,881 representing 1.4% of revenues for the years ended March 31, 1987, 1886, and
1995, respectively. The increase both in dollars and as & percent of revenues is primarily associated with the
amortzation of the customer bases and goodwill acquired through the Company's mergers and acquisition activities.
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+ Dufing the year ended March 31, 18587, the Company incurred non-cash charges, provision to reduce carrying valus
of certain assets, of approximately $6.3 million related to a writedown in the carrying value of certain assets,
including goodwill and customer base acguisiton costs associated with certain acguisitions. The Company
determined during the settement process called for in the certain acguisition agresments that atinition rates for
certain customer bases and businesses acquired were signficantly greater than onginally antizipated. Conseguentiy,
the Company determined that future cash flows would be less than that reguired 1o realize these assets. The
Comgany reassessed the fair value of these assets by estumating the present vaiue of the future cash flows through
updating with historical results the cash flow models utilized to inmially allocate the intangiblez acguired.

Due 10 the impairment of various intangibles, the Company analyzed the lives of its intangibles in accordance with
SFAS 121. Consequently, the Company has established new periods for amortizing certain customer base intangible
assets that it believes to be reasonable estimates of the remaining lives of these customer base intangibles assets.
The revised remaining useful lives assigned by the Company, range from 4 10 8 years for acquired customer bases.

Other Income and Expenses

QOperating income (loss) was ($8,033,833) representing (13.5%] of revenue for the year ended March 31, 1887,
Operating income was $755,720 reprasenting 1.7% of revenues for the year ended March 31, 1896, For the year
ended March 31, 1895, operating income was $1,098,130 representing 3.7 % of revenues.

Net imerest expanse for the year ended March 31, 1997 was 8517,596 as compared to net interest expense for the
year ended March 31, 1996 of $198,897, an increase of 160.2%. In May 1986, the Company entered intd a
$14,250,000 credit facility (1987 Facility] with a bank which includes a revolving credit facility and term loan
tacility. The proceeds of the term loan of approximately $3,250,000 was used to finance the May 1996 acquisition
of Universal Network Services, Inc. The revolving credit facility was used for general opersting purposes. Net
interest income for the yoar ended March 31, 1995 was $65,480. In December 1995, the Company renewed its
line of credit (1986 Facility) with a bank with proceeds used for general operating purpeses. Net interest income
during fiscal year 1995 resulited primarily from the investment of the proceeds from the Company's secondary public
offering.

Income Taxes ! .

The Company reported a net loss in fiscal 1997, and accordingly, recorded an income tax benefit of approximately
$697,000 or 8.2% of the p-e-tax loss. A significant portion of the pre-tax loss was related to a writedown in the
carrying value of certain assats including goodwill and customer basa acquisition costs. These assets must continue
1o be amortized for tax purposes and the Company believes that only a portion of this writedown should be utilized

for income tax purposas under 8."more likely than not® criteria. Accordingly, the Company astablished a valuation .

allowance of $1,227,000 related to the associated deferred tax assets of approximately 83,300,000, For the year
ended Marcn 31, 19886, $223,273 was provided for income taxes resulting in net income of 8374,4987. For the year
ended March 31, 1985, $2606,954, or 23.5% of pre-tax income, was anributed to income tax resulting in net income

of $867,514,
Liguidity and C apital Resources

MNet cash provided by operations for 1997 was $3,121,310, an increase from net cash used by operations of
$162,903 in 1996, and net cash provided by operations of $1,054,082 in 1995, The increase in cash flow from
nperations was primarily attributable to the increased gross margin and the timing of collection of sccounts
receivable and payment of accounts payabie.

Cash flows used in operations resulted in a negative impact on cash during 1996 due primarily to the impact of
growth in accounts receivable and other current assets that were not offset by similar ncreases in accounts payabie
and other current liabilities.

Tne Company's accounts receivable are anucipated 10 continue 10 grow due to hwgher sales volume and acguisitions.
Crowth will reguire cash disbursements for acquisitions, installatign costs on hines and ecuipment to expanc
networking capagility. In agdition, the growth will require cash payments 10 vencors pricr 1o receipt of payments
Cy 118 cCustomars.
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" *The Company's growth will also require continued expansion of the telecommumcations eguipment and related
capital items. The Company used net cash of 13,316,998, $807.377 and $568,837 for investing actwities for the
years 1997, 1998, and 1985, respect.= ;. The pnmary use of cash in 1857, 1896, ana 1985 was for the
acauisition of customer bases resulting in acquisition costs of $3,801.004, $1,101,173 ang §1,781.085

respectively.

Cash used in financing activities i 1987 was 578,338 as compared to cash prowided by financing activities of
$1.339,5B5 in 1896, and cash used in financing activities of $§370,684 in 1883, in 1287 the Lompany mage
onncipal payments on debt of $3,743,031 and received cash of £3,250,000 from the issuance of gebt. In 1235
the Company borrowed $2,522,235 under its line of credit and made principal payments on (ts gebt of $1,243,07%.
In 1995 the Company redeemed all of its outstanding preferred stock for $55.527, mage payments against cosiz
of the secondary public offering of 853,585, reduced debt principal by $454,680, and received §204,885 from the
issuance of common stock.

The Company experienced a net cash decrease of $237,435 in 1997, a net cash increase of $3€8,305 in 1896, ang
$114,551 in 1985, Stockholders' equity was $8,112,169 and $13,986,0668 as of March 31, 1997, and 1988,

respectively.

in May 1896, the Company entered into a $14,250,000 credit facility with a bank (the 1887 Facilityl which includes
a revolving credit facility and term loan facility. Borrowings under the revolving credit portion of the 1997 Facility
may not exceed the lessor of $11,000,000 minus any reserves the lender may deem eligible or B5% of elgibie
receivables. Borrowings under the revolver will bear interest at the prime rate plus 0.75%. Borrowings and unpaid
interest on the revolving facility are repayable in full at maturity of the facility on June 1, 1888. The Company is
allowed 1o borrow $3,250,000 under the term loan facility. The term loan is repayable in 36 equal monthly
instaliments of $90,278 plus accrued interest. The term loan bears interest at the prime rate plus 3%. Substantially
all of the assets of the Company are pledged as collateral under the credit tacuity. At Marcn 31, 1837, 340,000
and $2,437,000, were outstanding under the revolving and the term loan, respectively.

Substantially all of the assets of the Company including tangible assets, receivables and general intangibles, the
definition of which includes but is not limited to intellectual property, business plans, business records and licenses,
are pledped as collateral under the 199} Facility. The 1987 Facility requires compliance with certain financial and
operating covenants which include minimum leverage and fixed charge coverage ratios. As of March 31, 18587, the
Company was nat in compliance with certain financial covenants enumerated in the 1997 Facility. Accordingly, the
Company received a waiver with respect to certain of such covenants from its lender as of March 31, 1987. Asa
result of and in connection with the merger transactions consummated in May 1997, the Company comglied with
cermain of the financial covenants, and has currently negotiated certain amendments to the credit facility to reflect
changes in financial position and anticipated changes in business strategies and operating results associated with
such transactions. While management, believes that the Company will be able to comply with the renegotiated loan
agreement, there can be no assurance that the Company will not require additional waivers in the future or, if such
waivers are required, that the lender will grant them.

Absant significamt capital requirements for other acquisitions, the Company believes that cash flow from operations
and funds available under existing credit facilities will be adequate to meet the Company's capital needs for the

remainder of fiscal 1098,
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In February 1987, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Staternent of Financial Accounting
Standard (SFAS) No. 128, "Eamings per Share”. This statement established accounting standards for computing and
presenting eamings per share and applies 1o entities with publicly held common stock. This statement is effective
for periods ending atter December 15, 1887, including interim periods,

Early application of SFAS No. 128 is not permitted, however, upon adoption, all prior periods must be restated.
Eased on the standerds to be adopted, basic earnings (loss) per share wouid be (81.30), $0.08. and 30.19 for the
years ended March 31, 1897, 1886, and 1985, respectively, and diluted earnings per share wouid be (81,30, $0.07,
and $0.19, respectively.

In February 1997, the FASB issusd SFAS No. 129, "Disclosure of Information about Capital Structure”™. This
s:atement establishes standards for disclesing information about an entity's capital structure. This statement 1S
etfective for financial statements for periods ending atter December 15, 1887, and will not matenially change the
disclosures currently included in the Company’s finanzial statements.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

Please see pages F-1 through F-E.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None

PART I

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT.

Incorporated by reference to the Company's definitive proxy statement for 1397 Annual Meeting of Stockholders,

to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days atter March 31, 1897.

ITEM 11, EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION,

Incorporated by reference to the Company's definitive proxy statement for 1997 Annual Meeting of Stockholders,

to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commussion within 120 days after March 31, 1887,

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT. .

Incorporated by reference to the Company's definitive proxy statement for 1997 Annual Meeting of Stockholders,

to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after March 31, 1997.
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS.

incorporated by reference to the Company's definitive proxy statement for 1887 Annual Meeting of Stockholders,

to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after March 31, 1887,
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PART 1V

ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, AND REPORTS ON FORM B-X.

(2} 1. The following Financial Statements are filed as part of this Repor::

index 10 Financial Statements
independent Auditors’ Report
Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Consolidated Statements of Stockhalders’ Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
fa} 2. None.
(a) 3. Exhibits:

27.1 Financial Data Schedule [Filed herewith]

'tl.!
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F-8

(b) 1. The Company filed Form 8-x/A dated November 15, 1896 on .'J-nunry 14, 1887 which included the
Supplemental Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Company and its subsidiaries as of March 31, 1986 and
1995 and the related Supplemental Consolidated Statements of Operations, Stockholders’ Eguity and Cash

Flows associated with its merger with United Wats, Inc.




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Secuon 13 or 15(d) of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934, the Company =as guly
caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunta duly authorized.

NETWORK LONG DISTANCE. INC.

Sy Jg/ Thomas G, Keats
Thomas G. Keefe, Chief Financial OHizer

Dated: June 27, 1987

Pursuant 1o the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the fgl-
lowing persons on behalf of the Company and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Capaciry DRara

Jdsllobo D, Crawfoed
John D. Crawford

Chairman, Chief
Executive OHicer,

June 27, 1987

and Director
Jsf Timothy A, Bamron President June 27, 1397
Timothy A. Barton and Director
Jsi John V. Leat Secretary June 27, 1997
John V. Leaf and Director

Principal Financial Otficer, June 27, 1897
Thomas G. Keefe Principal Accounting Oficer,

and Director '
dafleon L Nowalsky Director June 27, 1997
Leon L. Nowalsky
JAs/Bussell ). Page Director June 27, 1997
Ayssell J, Page
3 Director June 27, 1987
Timothy J. Sledz
s/ Alberr A, Woodward =~ Director June 27, 1987

Albert A, Woodward




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Stockholders of
Network Long Distance, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Network Long Distance, Inc. [a Delaware
Corporation) and subsidiaries as of March 31, 1997 and 1296, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity and cash fiows for each of the years in the three year penod ended March 31, 1957. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits. We did not audit the financial statements of Long Distance
Telecom, Inc. included in the consolidated financial statements of Network Long Distance, Inc. which statements
constitute total assets of 4.6% as of March 31, 1996 and total revenues of 7.7% for the year ended March 31,
19896, and total revenues of 9.5% for the year ended March 31, 1985 of the related consolidated totals. We also
did not audit the financial statements of United Wats, Inc., included in the consolidated financial statements of
Network Long Distance, Inc. which statements constitute total assets of 10.3% as of Marck 31, 1886 and total
revenues of 23.9% for the year ended March 31, 1996 and total revenues of B.0% for the year ended March 31,
1895 of the related consolidated totals. The financial statements of Long Distance Telecom, Inc. and United Wats,
Inc. were sudited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it
relates to the amounts included for Long Distance Telecom, Inc. and United Wats, Inc., is based solely upon the

reports of other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstaternent. An audit includes examining, on 8 test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statemenis. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based upon our sudits and the reports of other audnors, the consclidated financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Network Long Distance, Inc. and subsidiaries
as of March 31, 1987 and 1998, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for.each of the years in the
three year period ended March 31, 1987, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Arthur Andersen LLP

Jackson, Mississippi,
June 26, 1997
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPCRT

To the General Partner

Telecommunications Ventures Limited Partnership No. 1
T/A Blue Ridge Telephone

Culpeper, VA 22701

We have audited the balance sheet of Telecommunications Ventures Limitec Partnership No. 1, T/A Blue Ridge
Telephone, as of December 31, 1985 and the related statements of cperatons, partners' equity (deficit) and cash
flows for the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994, These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Partnership's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards reguire that
we plan and perfarm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free

of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Telecommunications Ventures Lim'ted Partnership No. 1, T/A Blue Ridge Telephone as of December 31, 1995
and the resuits of its opsrations and its cash flows for the years ended December 31, 1985 and 19924 in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles.

Yount, Hyde & Barbour, P.C.

Culpeper, Virginia
May 10, 1996




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Soard of Directors

UNITED WATS, INC.

We have sudited the balance sheet of United Wats, Inc. as of December 31, 1895, and the related staterments of
income, changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994, These
financial statemants are the responsibility of the Company's management. Jur responsibility s 10 express an opinian
on these financial statements based on our audits.

\We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we plan and parform the sudits to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statemants are free of
material misstaterment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide & reasonable basis for our opinion,

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to sbove present fairly, in all material respects. the financial position
of United Wats, Inc. 45 of Docamber 21, 1385, and the /esults of s operations and it cash fiows (ui lie yBars
ended December 31, 1995 and 1984 in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles,

Mayer HoHfman McCann L.C.

Kansas City, Missouri
March 11, 1998
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CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Ae=ounts receivabie, net of sliowance for doubtful accoums of
$2.355.000 and £1,073,000 at March 31, 1587 ang 1836,

respecuvely
Other receivabies
Daferred income tax asset
Other current assets
Total cufrent assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Land
Building and improvements
Telecommunications equipment
Fumiture and fixtures

Less: accumulated depreciation

CUSTOMER BASE ACQUISITION COSTS, NET
GOODWILL, NET

OTHER INTANGIBLES, NET

OTHER ASSETS

Total assets
LABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued telecommunications cost

Other accrued liabilities

Customer deposits '

Deferred income tax Hability

Current maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligation
Total current labilities

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY
LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Series A convertible preferred stock - §.01 par value;
25,000,000 shares suthorized; no shases issued and outstanding at
March 31, 1997 and 1996 (redemption value $J per sharel

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common stock - $.0001 par value; 20,000,000 shares authonzed:
6,718,908 and
6,523,902 shares issued and outstanding at March 31, 1937 and
19986,
respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Aetained earmnings (deficit)

Treasury Stock

Tetal stockholders” equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

[=]

EC

S 6EE116

8,641,860 8,325,997
180,965 708,962
148,800 -
E‘.‘z 15¢ 71

10,478,515 11.595,762
75,000 75.000
465,575 697,285

1,683,945 2,338,866

~1.501.9729

31,706,503 4 482 348

J2081.992) 1L26B.9]6

5,645,730 5,073,145
450,020 3,287,637
264,221 412,220

—218,940
$18053712 4231l ng

§ 180,315 $1,667,423

5,850,844 2,736,989

1,808,959 1,162,590
128,980 176,210

- 242,872
~1.208.209 — 285135
9,387,287 6,251,230
- 58.201
1,454,256 3,015,619
672 652

14,826,040 12,870.833

(6,624,253) 1,106,871
a2 290 192 .290)

A112.1683 11 886 066
;1=nﬁa‘;1z $21 111115

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Revenues lincluding excise taxes of $2 883,000 .

$1,230,000, and $218,000 in 1997, 1996 and 1985,

respectivaely)

Operating expenses:

Eor tha Yaar Snded har=h 71

1997

16G4a§F

194§

=y

§50 8590 135 s45.083 191 $29.374 8553

et | VPR

Transmission costs 40,717,419 32,548,221 21,823,645

Selling, general and administrative 15,770,890 9,420,273 5,852,103

Provision for losses on accounts receivable 3,041,617 1,112,151 403,314

Depreciation and amortization 1.802.842 1,246,826 396,661

Provision to reduce carrying value of certain assets 8.291.000 - -

Total operating expenses 62223968 44327471 28.275.723

QOperating inceme (loss) {8,033,833) 755,720 1,098.130 --
Interest (incomne) expense, net 517,596 198,897 |85,480)
Other (income) expense - __lagos7) _ 30142
Income (loss) before income taxes (8,551,429) 597.770 1,134,468
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 1897000 __223.273 _ 266954
Net income (loss) {7.854,429) 374,487 B67,514
Pro forma adjustment (Note 1) | P

Income tax provision — 4700 __ 1262378 __ 28,685
Pro forma net income (loss) applicable to common

stockholders $(2830.129) 3248122 .3838.823
Earnings ({loss) per common share 3 (L30 & 007 3 019

11,300 3 005 3 0,18

Pro forma earnings (loss) per comman share 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BALANCE, MARCH 317, 1994

Issuance ol common stack to former holders of
Series A Converlible Melenred Stock

Issuance of comunon s'  :k lor acquisitions

Issuance of comimon s
$53.58%)

:k (net of direct costs of

Metirement ol treasury stock

Dividends on common  tock, $0.02 per share
Net income

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 1995

Issuance ol common stock lor acquisitions
Dividends on common stock, $0,000 per share
Met income

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 1996

Issuance of common stock lor acquisition

Het loss

Elfect ol change in fiscal year end of merged entities
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 1997

Commaon Stock
— 000 Par Value
bhuinher Amount

= r

NETWORK LONG DISTANCE, INC, ANC SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS" EQUITY

Additional
Paid-in

Retamed

—Capital = Earpinus

5418,179 8 542 $6,139,916
63,502 4 180,500
29,038 3 232,126

728,773 73 151,038
(632,527) (63) (18,339)
5,606,965 561 6,695,241
916,937 91 6,275,592
6,523,902 652 12,970,833
195,006 20 1,857,207
£.218.308

$135.113

(128,867)
(105,000)

8067.514
768,760

{36,386)
374,497
1,106,871

(7,854,429
123,305

-t 072 $14.828.040 $(6.624.250)

Tho accompanying notes are an integral part of these finandial statements.
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—Treasury Stock

Humbes Aunount
1,028,917 $1239.559)
{632,527 147,269
396,390 (92,290)
396,390 192,290)
220,330 2 _192,290)
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CONSOUIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Far Yanr E A k|
1907 1007

CASH FLOWS FROM DPZRATING ACTIVITIES

Wet income [loss)
Adiustments 1o recongcile net income (loss) to net cash

$(7.854,429) 3§ 374,897

provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation 630,338 622,845 316,39
Amaortization 1,272,804 822,981 80,270
Provision for losses on accounts receivable 3,041,617 1,112,151 403,314
Provision to reduce carrying value of certain 6,291,000 - -
assets
Provision (banefit) for deferred income taxes {724,275) 207,907 71,434
Provision for employee stock incentive plan 30,835 50,752 42,350
{Gain) loss on disposal of equipment - {17,000) 62,319
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effect of
business combinations:
Accounts receivable {1,516,201) (3,997.138) (2,B8B,843)
Other receivables and current assets 347,887 11,2086,250) 34,408
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 1,664,274 1,943,120 2,223,200 ..
Other 162450 122232 _(158.178)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 3121310 _(162.803) _1.054.082
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures (304,798} (1,081,883) (1,423,988)
Sale of short-term investments - 1,558,562 2,751,238
Acquisitions and related costs {3,801,004) (1,101,173) (1,781,055)
Decrease (increase) in other intangible assets 24,441 (195,321) {(110.853)
Proceeds from sale of equipment 764,363 17,000 -
Other ¢ = 14 462) __14173)
Net cash used in investing activities [3316.998) _(807.377) __(668.837)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net borrowings (repayments) under line of credit (2,492,731) 2,532,235 -
Principal payments on debt (1,250,300} (1,243.018) {454,680)
“ ‘Procebds from issuance of debt ;250,000 88,754 123,000
Decrease in capital lease obligation (85,305) - -
Proceeds from issuance of common stock - - 204,695
Redemption of preferred stock - - 65,527
Dividends on common stock - {36,386) (134,587
Otfering costs - - —153.5885)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities _[578,336) _1.338.585 _1370.604)
Effect of change in fiscal year end of merged 536,588 = =
entities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash (237,436 369,305 114,551
equivalents
Cash and cash equivaients at beginning of pericd _BE2572 __5232687 _ 408716
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $. 855138 46802572 £.523.287

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Network Long Distance, Inc. (the "Cuompany” or *Network”) provides long distance telecommunications services to
commercial and residential customers throughout mast of the United States with a primary concentration on small
to medium-sized businesses. The Company provides these services primarily through three customer service
channels - business retail, agents and association programs. The business retail channel involves the sale of long
distance services directly to end-users., The agents channel invoives the sale of long distance services directly 1o
end-users through master agents of the Company. The association program channel establishes exclusive marketing
agreements with various trade or business associations to market the Company’s products and services to members
of the associations. Previously, the Company operated a switchless reseller channel which invalved the sale of long
distance services to other entities who resell the services to end users. The Company began to de-emphasize its 1

switchiess reseller channel during the year ended March 31, 1996, See Note 2. .

Calls are transmitted over circuits leased from other telecommunications carriers at fixed or variable rates. Calls are
switched through the Company’s switching center or by other carriers on the Company’s behalf. The Company
furnishas its end user customars, as weall as its reseller customers, with various long distance products including 1 +
dialing, WATS, private line, calling cards and 800 services. Billing, collection and customer service are available,
at additional costs to reseller customers.

The Company has four wholly-owned subsidiaries, Network Advanced Services, Inc., Network Acguisition Corp.,
United Wats, Inc. and Long Distance Telecom, Inc. All references to the Company include its subsidiaries except .

as stated otherwise. The Company’s principal cffices are located in Baton Rouge, Louisiana, .

Mergers

On June 30, 1996, Network merped with Long Distance Telecom, Inc. dba Blue Ridge Telephone (“Blue Ridge”) and

in connection therewith issued 337,079 shares of common stock for all of Blue Ridge's common stock. On
November 15, 1998, Natwork merged with United Wats, Inc. ["United Wats®) and in connection therewith issued
2,277,780 shares of common stock for all of United Wats' common stock. (Both transactions are collectively

referred to as the “Mergers.”) Each of the Mergers was accounted for as a pooling-of-interests and, accordingly, the

Network financial statements fot.periods prior to the Mergers have besen restated.to include the resuits of Blue Ridge - - -
and United Wats for all periods presen-ed. The combined companies of Network, Biue Ridge and United Wats are :
herginafter referred to as the Company. Separate and combined results of operations are as follows: [Note that for f
the six months ended September 30, 1996, balances for Blue Ridge have been included in the balances for

Network.):

Three Six months Year Ended
monthsanded __anded — Mach 31,
Juns 30 1886 Ssprember 30, 1898  __ 1895

Revenues:
Network $8,875.000 $20,197,000 $30,810,000 $24.217,000
Blue Ridge 894,000 - 3,463,000 2,780,000
United Wats ~4.448 000 — 0,448,000 10.810.000 2.368.000
Combined 814415000  _$22.645000  $42.082.000 *22.375.000
Income [lo. 3} before income tax:
Network 8 (32,000 & (6€.000) $(442,0000 $& 609,000
Slue Ridge 45,000 - 313,000 62,000
United Wats 83.000 414000 727000 __4683.000
Combined § S8 000 —m Al COOQ S592.000 1134000




" Prior 10 the Mergers, Blue Ridge opersted in the form of a partnershup under the name “Telecommurications Ventures
Limited Partnership No. 1 T/A Biue Ridge Telephone.” On June 17, 1986, Blue Ridge changed to a corporate form
of organization. Blue Ridge did not recognize income tax expense for the periods presented because 11s tax anributes
flowed to its partners. The consolicated statements of operations include an unaudited pro forma adjustment 1o
reflect results as if Slue Ridge had been subject to income tax for all pericds presented.

Prior 16 the Mergers, both Blue Ridge and United Wats utilized a December 31 fiscal year end. For purposes of the
combined results of operations for the year ended March 31, 1987, the amounts include Network, Blye Ridgs ang
United Wats historical results of operations for the twelve months ended March 3%, 1887, For purposes of the
combined resuits of operations for the years ended March 31, 19865 and 1995, the Blue Rigge and United Was
amounts refiect Blue Ridge and United Wats historical results of operations for the years ended December 31, 1835
and 1994, respectively, and the Network amounts reflect Network’s historical results for the years ended March 37,
1996 and 1985, respectively. Therefore, the Blue Ridge and United Wats historical results of operations for the thres
months ended March 31, 1986 are not contained in the Company's consolidated statements of operations and caah
flows for any period presented. There were no significant intercompany transactions among Network, Blue Ridge

and United Wats.

The following are condensed statements of operations and cash flowr for Blue Ridge and United Wats for the three
months ended March 31, 1986:

Condensed Statements of Operations

Theee Months Ended March 31, 1996 o
Blue Ridge  Lnited Wats
Revenue $926,000 83,855,000
Operating expenses 452000  3.8.8.000
Operating income 74,000 219,000
Other income (expenses) —14.000) =
Income before tax 70,000 218,
Provision for income tax —_— 78,000
Netincome £70000  £120000
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
Iheee Months Ended March 31, 1996
Blue Ridge  LUnited Watsg
Nei Income $ 70,000 3 140,000
Depreciation 31,000 8,000
Change in current assets and liabilities 12,0000 _475.000
Cash provided by operating activities 98,000 823,000
Cash provided by lused in) investing
activities 10,000 — 137,000
Cash used in financing activities (138.0000 __{20.000)
increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 122,000 $.288.000

M \ Acouisition Acth { Related M

The “ompany has been actively engaged in an acqguisition program, focusing on companies pnimarily in the long
distance industry, See Note 3. Certain of the acquisitions have resulted in the Company’s acquiring significant
intangible assets, primarily customer base acquisition costs and goodwill. As explained in Note 3, during the year
ended March 31, 1987, primarily pursuant to certain contractual reevaluation criteria, mar.agemaent determined that
the Company’s ability to realize the unamortized balance of imangible assets related to certain pnor acquisimons was
uncerain. As a result, the Company incurred $6,251,000 in non-cash provisions to reduce the carrying value of such
intangibles to their estimated fair value. As of March 31, 1887, the Company has approximately $6,100,000 of
remaining unamortized intangible assets related to acquisition transactions. Management believes that its investment
in such intangible assets is realizable based on the estimated future net cash flows expected 10 be generated trom
the acquired entities or customer bases. However, management’'s estimates of future net cash tiows may change
in the future and such changes could be material.




‘Y The Company incurred a net loss of 87,854,000 for the year ended March 31, 1897, Factors that contributed

signficantly 10 the loss were the provision 10 reduce the carrying vaiue of intangible assets, an increased provision
for losses on accounts receivable and increased selling, general and administrative expenses. As a result of the |gss,
stockholders’ equity declined from 813,886,000 at March 31, 1996 10 88,112,000 at March 31, 1237, Because
of the operating loss and resulting decline in stockhoiders’ equity reported by tne Campany for the year ended March
31, 1897, the Company was not in compliance with certain financial covenants comained in its bank crecit facilisy
(See Note 5). Accordingly, the Company received a waiver with respect to certain of such covenants from its lender
as of March 31, 1997, As a result of and in connection with the merger transactions consummated in May 1887
(See Note 13), the Company complied with certain of the financial covenants, and has negotiated certain
amendments 1o the credit facility to reflect changes in financial posiion and anucipated changes in business
strategies and operating results associated with such transactions. While management, believes that the Company
will be able to comply with the renegotiated loan agreement, there can be no assurtnce that the Company will not
require additional waivers in the future or, if such waivers are required, that the lender will grant them.,

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Princinles of Consolidat

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its whally-owned
subsidiaries, All significant intercompany balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimares

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and revenues and expenses
during the periods reported. Actual resuits could differ from those estimates. Estimates are used primarily when
accounting for allowance for doubtful accounts, depreciation and amortization, and taxes. In addition, estimates
are used by management in estimating future net cash flows when evaluating the Company's ability to realize its
investments in long-lived assets, and in determining estimated fair value of assets which are deemed 10 have been
impaired. See “Accounts Receivable” and “Intangible Assets,” and Note J.

Eair Value of Financial instruments

The carrying amounts for cash, accounts recervable, other recervables, accounts payable, accrued liabilities and long-
term debt approximate their fair value,

Accounts Recaivabls

Accourts receivable represent amounts due on monthly billings for long distance and other telecommunucations costs
incurred by customers,

The allowance for doubtful accounts is established through a provision for losses on accounts receivable which is
charged to expense. Accounts receivable are wntten off against the allowance for doubtful accounts when
management believes the collectibility of the receivable is unlikely. The allowance, which is based on evaluations
of the collectibility of the receivables and prior bad debt experience, is an armount that management believes will be
adeguate to absorb probabie losses on accounts receivable existing at the reporting date. The evaluations take into
consideration such factors as changes in the aging and volume of the accounts receivable, overall quality, review
of specific problem receivables and current industry conditions that may atfect a customer's ability to pay. Actual
results could differ from management’s estimates. Write-offs during the fiscal years 1997, 1896 ang 1995 were
approximately 82,010,000, $780,000, and, 178,000, respectively.

During the year ended March 31, 1988, the Company began resvaluating its switchless resel'er channel activities,
penerelly and, specifically its relationship with certain resellers. As a result, the Company chose 10 de-emphasize
115 reseller marketing activities by reducing the number of reseller customers and the related wholesale accounts
receivable. In addition, certain reseller customers expenencec financial aifficulties which impeded therr ability 10
pay the Company on 8 imely basis. Reseller customers with slow payment histories have been placed on specific

payment plans or under lock box agreements.
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Du—.ng the vear ended March 31, 1887, the Company determined that losses on certain accounts receivabie acguireg
through acquisition transactions were greater than expected at the time of acguisition. As & result, the Zompany
has written-off or made provision for such accounts receivable to reduce the carrying amount to the estimaled

realizable value,

Managemen: has specifically evaluated its allowance for doubtful a::uunts ard belisves the allowance o be
adequate 10 absorb probabie iosses on the accounts recevable at Mareh 31, 19687, However the aciual iosses on
ac=ounts receivable could differ from management's evaluation at March ”1 1997 and suzn ditference couls be

matenal.

e Emi a

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Deprecianon is provided for financial reporuing purposes using primarily
the straight-line method over the following esumated useful lives:

Building 30 vears
Building improvements 7 years
Telecommunications ¢quipment 3-10 years
Office eguipment 5.7 years

Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Replacements and betterments are capitalized, The cost and
related reserves of assets sold or retired are removed from the property accounts, and any resulting gan or loss s

reflected in results of operations.

Intangible Assets

The Company’s intangible assets include customer base acquisition costs and non-compete agreements incurred as
a result of purchased customer bases; goodwill, customer base acquisition costs and non-compete agreesments

resulting from acquisitions of businesses; and software development costs attributable to telecommunications service
activities.

in aliocating the excess of the purchase 'ﬁriu over tangible assets acquired in business combinations, the Company
utilizes cash flow models and projected attrition rates to quantity the values allocated to the various intangibles as
well as the related useful lives. While management believes that the cash flow models are achievable and the
atrition rates are reasonable, management regularly reassesses the realization of the acquisition-related intangibles
through periodic updates uf the cash flow models. Additionally, certain acquisition agreements call for a comparison,
at a specified date, of actual customer attrition ratex experiencesd. to those expectad at the time of the acquisitian
agreement (the “True-Up”). I actual atrition rates differ from expected rates, certain adjustments 1o the acquisition
price may be required. I st the time of the True-Up, actual attrition rates are significantly greater than expected by
the Company, the Company makes a determination, based on estimated future net cash flows, whether the
imangible asset related to the acquistion has been impaired. i an impairment has occurred, a provision for reduction
in the carrying value is made to reduce the carrying amount of the intangibles to the estimated fair value of the
related customer base. Such provisions are applied first 1o any goodwill attributable to the impaired assets until
goodwill is eliminated and then to the customer base acquisition costs. See Note 3.

Customer base acquisiton costs include the excess of the purchase price over any tangible assets acquired as well
as specific costs incurred to consummate the transaction such as attorney's fees, accountant’s fees and due
diligence costs. Customer base acquisition costs are recorded based upon the estimated value (primarily based on
estimated future net cash flows) of the customer base acquired and are amortized over 6 1o 7 years using the
siraightdine method, Accumulated amortization at March 31, 1887 and 1896, was approximately §1,607,000 and

§418,000, respectively.

Goodwill is recorded in connection with business combinations to the extent the purchase price exceeds the
estimated fair value of specifically identifiable tangible and intangible assets. The Company periodically evaluates
the realizability of goodwill based primarily on expected cash flows from the acquired assets or business. Goodwill
is amortized ovar 30 years using the straight-line method. Accumulated amortization at March 31, 1987 and 19096,
was approximately $75,000 and $115.000, recpactively.




* ' Other intangibles inciude saftware costs of approximately $235,000 and $296,000 as of March 31, 1997 and 1966
respectively, and non-compete agreements of approximately $231,000 at both March 31, 1897 and 1995 The
Company capitalizes external costs related to software development while internal costs are expensed. Software
costs are amortized using the straight-line method over lives ranging from & to 5 years. Non-compete agreements
are amortized using the straight-line method over the lives of the agreements, currently 5 years. Actumulated
amortization of other intangibles as of March 31, 1987 and 1996, was approximately $217,000 and $194, 300,

respectively.

See Note 3 for discussion related to the application of Statement of Financial Accounung Standards, ["SFAS™) ho
121 *Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets 10 be Disposed of.”

Qsher Receivables

Cther receivables consist of current amounts due from customers and entities that are providing or have formeriy
provided billing and collection services for a partion of the Company's customer base.

QOther Currant Assers

At March 31, 1997 and 1998, other current assets consisted of costs of direct response advertising and other
prepaid expenses. Direct response advertising costs are capitalized and amortized over the expected life of the
customer. The Company has determined that the expected life of a8 customer obtained through direct response
advertising is one year. At March 31, 1997 and 1986, approximately $8,000 and $183,000, net of accumulated
amortization of approximately $368,000 and §194,000, respectively, was included in other current assets related
10 direct response advertising .

Qthar Assets

Other assets consist primarily of long-term notes receivable from employees of approximately $211,000 and
$262,000 at March 31, 1997 and 1996, respectively, deferred tax assets of $179,000 at March 31, 1997 and
deferred financing costs of $100,00C, net of accumulated amortization of $83,000 at March 31, 1897,

. 1

Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided using an asset and liability approach. The current provision for income taxes represents
actual or estimated amounts payable or refundable on tax returns filed or to be filed for each year. Deferred tax
assets and liabiimies are recorded for the estimated future tax effects of (a) temporary differences between the tax
hasis.c!. assets and liabilities and amounts reparted.in the belance shests, gnd (b) operating lozs and tox credit -
carryforwards. The overall change in deferred tax assets and liabilities for the period measures the delerred tax
expense for the period. Effects of changes in enacted tax laws on deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflected
as adjustments 10 tax expense in the period of adjustment. The measurement of deferred tax assets may be reduced
by a valuation allowance based on judgmental assessment of available evidence if deemed more likely than not that
some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Becognition of Revenue
Custcmer long distance calls are routed through switching centers owned by the Company or others over long

distance telephone lines provided by others. The Company records ravenuss at the time of customer usage primarily
on a measured time basis,

Transmission Costs

Transmission 20518 include all payments to local exchange carriers and interexchange carners pnmaniy for access
and transport charges. The Company primarily utilizes long-term lixed cost contracts with other carriers in order to
carry customer calls.
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Far the year ended March 31, 1887, earnings per share were basec on the weighted average number of shares
sutstanding duning the period. No common stock euuivalents were utilized in the caiculation as their effect would
ba anti-dilutive. For the years ended March 31, 1996 and 1985, earnings per share were calculated based on the
weighted average number of sharas outstanding durning :ne year pius the dilutive efpct of stock ootions and warrants
datermined using the weasury method, Average common and comman eguivalent shares utilized were 6,060,154
= 075,938, and 4,567,620, respectively, for the years ended March 21, 1237, 199€, ang 1985, In each year. there
were no differences in primary and fully diluted earnings per share.

Comman Stock Escrow Aqreamant

As part of its public offering of common stock in March 1984, the Company transferred 626,606 sharas of common
stock, owned by two officers, into an escrow account. The common stock could have been released from escrow
in three annual increments of 208,896 shares if the Company either had met earnings per share requirements, on
a fully diluted basis as defined in the agreement, or had consummated an offering of the Company’s common stock
considering certain conditions defined in the agreement. The stipulated earnings per share ["EPS”"] amounts were

as follows:

Year Ended
March 31, —EBS
1885 $0.375
1986 0.60
1987 1.00

As the Company failed to meet EPS requirements, pursuant to the terms of the agreement, the common stock heid
in escrow will be forfeited and canceled 1o the Company’s treasury by July 15, 2000. The escrowed shaies have
been excluded from the weighted average number of shares outstanding for the years ended March 31, 1897, 1596
and 1995, As discussed in Note 9, one of the officers subject to the escrow sgreement has initiated litigation
against the Company seeking the release of the escrowed shares or other compensation. If the escrowed shares
are released, future per share earnings (loss) would be reduced.

£ C s ’

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash on hand and on deposit are considered 1o be cash and cash
equivalents.

an Hirptions
Certain items for 1996 and 1995 have been reclassified to conform with the 1887 presentation.
Becently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
In February 18897, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB”) issued SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share.”

This statement establishes accounting standards for computing and presenting earnings per share and applies 10
entities with publicly held common stock. This statement is effective for periods ending atter December 15, 1987,

including interim periods.

Early application of SFAS No. 128 is not permitted, however, upon adoption, all prior periods must be restated.
Based on the standards to be adopted, basic earnings (loss) per share would be $(1.30), $0.08, and $0.13 for the
vears er ‘ed March 31, 1997, 1896, and 1895, respectively, and diluted eamings per share would be $(1.30), $0.07,
and $0.18, respectively.

In Fabruary 1997, the FASB issued SFAS Ne. 129, “Disclosure of Information about Capital Structure.” This
statement establishes standards for disclosing information about an entity’s capital structure. This statement is
effective for financial statements for periods ending after December 15, 1887, and will not materially change the
disclosures currently included in the Company'’s financial statements.




* 3. MERGERS AND ACQUISITIONS:

The Company has completed several acquisitions of customer bases of other long distance companies, and businezs
combinations with other long distance companies. The lollowing 15 a discussion of these transactions which have

been matenal.

- -

The Company hag completed a senes of acquisitions of segments of other long distance providers’ customer Sases,
Such acguisitions have been accomplished through the purchase of the customer base and related accounis
racervable for cash, shares of the Company’s common stock, issuance of notes payabie and forgiveness of aczounts
receivable or a combination thereof. All acquisitions have been accounted for as purchases.

The table below sets forth information concerning significant customer base acguisitions by the Company:

Borehagn Prem

Cash ang Veiuve of Aggety Acmpred
Acquintion Notes Shares Accounts Customaet Other
Acoured Enury ___ __Dete = _Faveble __fesysd = Heceivabla __ Bass  [ntsnaibies
Quantum
Communications, Inc,
{Quantumi| Jar-86 $814,000 4500.000 $191,000 $E27.000
Natwork Serviced, Inc.
(NSD May-25 758,000 55,000 258,000 J68,000 =
Colorsdo River
Communications (CRC) Now-94 1,742,000 232.000 136,000 492,000 870,000
Business Combinations

In May 1996, the Company purchased substantially all of the customer base of Universal Network Services, Inc.
[*UniNet”), a provider of long distance telecommunication services, in a transaction accounted for as a purchase.
The results of operations of the UniNet customer base acquired are included in the results of operations of the
Company from the date of acquisition. Consideration for the purchase included 243,758 shares of the Company's
common stock with an assigned value of approximately 81,862,000 and approximately $3,650,000 cash. The
Company acquired the outstanding accounts receivable related to the customer base which were valued at
approximately $776,000. Intangible assets acquired were allocated to customer base acquisition cost at
approxomately 32,115,000 and geaawill at approximately $2,772,000. The Company originally amortized custsmar
base acquisition co:t over 7.5 years and goodwill over 30 years using the straight-line method based primarily on
expected customer attrition rates, estimated net cash flows, and industry practices. Of the 243,758 shares of the
Company's commen stock issued, 48,752 shares are held in escrow pending resolution of purchase price
contingencies. The escrowed shares have not been considered as part of the purchase prics.

in October 1895, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of ValueTel, Inc., (*VaiueTel"), a long distance
reseller whoss customer base was located primarily in lllinois, in a transaction accounted for as a purchass. Results
of operations of ValueTel are included in the Company's results of operations for the year ended March 31, 1996
trom the date of acquisition. As consideration for the purchese, the Company issued 890,915 shares of its comman
stock with an assigned value of approximately $5,955,000, assumed liabilines of ValueTel of approximatety
$696,000 and forgave a ValuaTel payable to the Company of approximately $608,000. The Company acguired
substantially all of ValueTel's accounts receivable which were valued at approximately $1,610.000. Intangible
assets acquired were allocated to customer base at approximataly 83,334,000 and goodwill at aporoximately
$2,315,000. The Company originally amortized customer base acquisition costs over 7.5 years and goodwill over
30 years using the straight-line method based primarily on expected customar attrition rates, estimated net cash
flows, and industry practices. Of the 850,915 shares of the Company’'s common stock issued, 18,500 shares are
heid in escrow pending resolution of purchase price contingencies, The escrowud shares have not been considered
2s part of the purchase price. The purchase agreement with ValueTel calls for a re-evaluation of customaer attnuion
rates one year from the acquisition cate. As of March 31, 15887, such re-evaluation was in progress. Howsver.
management of the Company believes that, as a resutt of the re-avaluaton, the escrowed shares will not be released.
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o Tha'fnllnwinn unaudited pro forma combined results of operations for the Company assume that the UniNet and
ValueTel acquisitions were completed on April 1, 1995,

1067 10848

Revenues £61,285 00> $5£ 285,000

Loss applicable 1o common shareholders
(7.908.900 17.02%,000
Loss per share (1.181 (1.23)
Thase pro forma amounts represent the historical operating results of the acquired entities combined with thaose of
the Company with appropriste adjustments which give effect to interes, expense, amortization and commaon shares
issued. These pro forma amounts are not necessarily indicative of operating results which would have occurred
UniNet and ValueTel had been operated by current management dunng the penods presented.

Droiei 1 rtain Assar

During the fiscal quarter ended Decemnber 31, 1996, as part of the re-evaluation called for in the ValueTel agreement,
the Company determined that the attrition rates for the customer base acquired were greater than onginally
anticipated. As a result, management determined that it was appropriate to re-evaluate attrition rates of all customer
bases acquired prior to the beginning of fiscal year 1997, In March, 1997, management determined that attrition
rates related to the customer base acquired in connection with the UniNet acguisition were also greater than
expected. Consequently, management, applying the requirements of SFAS 121, determined that future cash flows
from the scquired customer bases would be less than that required to realize these assets. Management then
reassessed the fair value of these assets by estimating the present value of the future cash flows through updating
with historical results the cash flow models utilized to initially allocate the intangibles acguired. As a result, the
Company incurred non-cash expense related to the provision to reduce the carrying vaiue of customer base
acquisition costs and goodwill to their respective estimated fair values.

The following table details the transactions which resulted in provisions:

’, Provision .
Total Unamortized to Reduce
Intangibles Carrying  _Balance Atter Provision

: iaini Bii Provisi v C A Goodval
CRC 41,588,000 $ 950,000 $ 638.000 F -
VaiuaTel 6,018,000 2,500,000 3,218,000 -
Quantum 834,000 300,000 534,000 -
UniNet 4,887,000 2,241,000 2,115,000 531,000

Because of the higher than expected attrition rates, the Company analyzed the expected remaining lives of its
intangibies in accordance with SFAS 121, Consequently, the Company has established new periods for amoruzing
its customer base acquisition costs that it believes to be reasonable estimates of the remaining lives of these
intangibles. After the Company’s reassessment of amortization periods for its customer base ascquisition costs, the
remaining useful lives assigned by the Company range from 4 to G years.

4. INCOME TAXES:

The Company follows the asset and liability method of accounting for deferred income taxes prescribed by SFAS
Ne. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for income
tax purposes. A valuation allowance is provided for that pertion of any deferred tax asset, for which it is deemed
mare likely than not that it will not be realized. A valuation allowance of $1,227,000 has been established related
1o deferred tax assets resulting from the provision to reduce the carrying value of intangibles due to the uncerainty
of realizing the full tax benefit of amortization of such intangible assets for tax purposes over 15 years.
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'+ The provision (benefit) for income taxes is composed of the fallowing:

Current provision (benefit)
Deferred provision [benefit)
Total provision (benefit] for income taxes

Tha following is a reconciliation of the actual provisions for iIncome taxes 1o the expected amounts which ate derved
by applying the statutory rate 1o reported pretax income. The expected statutory amount does not consider income

1297 1996 1998

§ 27,000 $1500C 996,000
1774 000) _208.000 71,000
$1627000) $222.000 4267000

lloss) related to Blue Ridge prior to June 17, 1936 because Blue Ridge was a pannership prior 10 that date,

1997 1904 j8ac

Expected statutory provision (benefit) $13,180,000] $140.,000 $292.000
Usage of net operating less carryforwards - - (75,0001
Effect of officer’s life insurance 3,000 2.000 110,000)
Effect of revocation of United Wats S Cerparation - - (26,000}
Status
Reclassification from current taxcs payable (45,000 69,000 -
Etfect of merger expenses 63,000 - -
Effect of intangibles amortization and provisions 1,235,000 - -
Other 10000 _12000 _(14,000)

(1,924,000} 223,000 267,000
Valuation allowance on deferred tax asset L227.000 - -
Actual tax provision (benefit) $1697.000) $223.000 $287.000

The following is a summary of the significant components of the Company's deferred ta. assets and liabilities as

of March 31, 1997 and 1996:

Allowance for doubrful accounts

Depreciation

AMmortization

Effect of sale-leaseback

Provision to reduce carrying value of certain assets
Effect of conversion from cash basis for income tax
purposes

Accoums receivable

Prepaig expenses

Accrued liabilives

Other

Valuation allowance
Total

Fl

March 31
1997 1996

$ 516,000 - § 419,000 E -
- 149,000 - 120,000

240,000 - 41,000 -

- 72,000 - -

1.294,000 - - -
284,000 - 240,000
= - 929.000
- - - 83,000

19,000 - 628,000 -
i e 2040 i —16.000
2,069,000 514,000 1.088.000 1,388,000

:1 ']12 m: - Ll ~4
£842000 1512000 1088000 +1J2B000

5. LONG-TERM DEAT AND CAPITAL IEASE OBLIGATIONS:

In December 1985, the Company renewed its line of credit {*1996 Facility™) with a bank with $8,000,000 being
available under the 1995 Facility. Borrowings under the 1886 Facility were scheduled to mature on April 30, 1287
anc bore interest at 1% above the prime rate (9.25% at March 31, 19961, At March 31, 19986, 82,532,000 was
outstanding under the 1996 Facility. The 1986 Facility was secured by certain accounts recesvable of the Company
and reguired compliance with certain financial and operating covenants which include minimum leverage and fixed

charge coverage ratios. At March 31, 1888, the Company was in compliance with those covenants.
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ir May 1996, the Company entered into a 514,250,000 credit faciiity (*1287 Facility”) with another bank which
includes a revolving credit facility and term loan facility. Borrowings under the 1887 Facility were used to repay and
retire the 1996 Facility, Borrowings under the revolving credit portion of the 1987 Facility may not exceed the lesser
of 511,000,000 less any reductions the lender may establish against such amount or 5% of eligible receivabies
Sorrowings under the revolving facility bear interest at the pnme rate plus 0.75% (8.0% at March 37, 1227

Borrawings and unpaid interest on the revolving faciiity are repayable in full at matwunty of the faciity on J-_-ne :

19828,

At March 31, 19597, botrowings outstanding under the revolving faciiity were $40,000. Unusec borrowing capacity
under the revolving facility at March 31, 1897 was 86,822,000, As part of the 1887 Facility, the Company #as
also allowed to borrow 83,250,000 under a term loan facility. The term loan is repayable in 36 egual monthiy
principal installments of 880,278 plus accrued interest. The term Ioan bears interest at the pnme rate plus 3%
{11.25% at March 31, 1887). At March 31, 1997, the balance outstanding under the term faciiity was $2,437,000
Substantially all of the assets of the Company including tangible assets, receivables and gensral intangibles, the
defintion of which includes but is not limited to intellectual property, business plans, business records and licenses,
are pledged as collateral under the 1887 Facility, The 1987 Facility requires compliance with certain financial and
operating covenants which include minimum leverage and fixed charge coverage ratios. As of March 31, 19597, the
Company was not in compliance with certain financial covenants esnumerated in the 1987 Facility. Accordingly,
the Company received a waiver with respect 1o certain of such covenanis from its lender as of March 31, 1867,
As a result of end in connection with the merger transactions consummated in May 1997 (See Note 13}, the
Company complied with certain of the financial covenants, and has currently negotiated certain amendments to the
credit facility to reflect changes in financial position and anticipated changes in business strategies and operatng
results associated with such transactions. While management, believes that the Company will be able 1o comply
with the renegotiated loan agreement. there can be no assurance that the Company will not require additional
waivers in the future or, if such waivers are required, that the lender will grant them.

At March 31, 1897 and 1986, $68,000 and $343,000, respectively, remained outstanding on notes payable
primarily to sellers of acquired entities incurred in connection with acquisition of customer bases. Borrowings under
these notes payable are unsecured, bear interest at B% and mature in February 2001.

At March 31, 1986, the Company hpd other notes payable outstanding to banks with aggregate balances of
$109,000. Bmuwmwﬂuﬂunmmmmv repaid by the Company during the year ended March 31, 1987,

Future maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

1998 $1,112,000
1209 1,101,000
2000 329,000
2001 —16.000

b eann 2000

Certain telecommunications equipment is leased under a capital lease agreement expiring May 1298, The following
is an analysis of the sguipment under capital lease included in property and eguipment:

March 31,
1997 164986
Communications equipment $ 368,000 $ 36B,000
Less accumulated depreciation 1171.000)

—1110,000)
282000 22380

The following is a schedule by years of the future minimum lease payments under capital lease together with the
gresent value of the minimum lease payments as of March 31, 1887,

1988 $103,000
1289 —2.000
Total minimum lease payments 112,000
Amounts representing interest 2. 000)
Present value of net minimum

iease payments 104,000
Less: current portion 496,000
Long-term portion $_0.000
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8."EMPLOYEE SENEFIT PLANS:

in May 1994, the Company adopted a stock incentive glan (the Plan) under which certain employees are sligitle 1o
recewve 100 shares of the Company’s common stock upon completion of thew first anniversary of service. All sharas
issued under the Plan are held by the Company for a peniod of three years from the issue date, 3t which time the
empiloyee vests if they are still emnloyed with the Company. In the event the Company is soid, all employees vas:
immediately. Approximatety 15,000, 19,300 and 17,600 shares of comman stock had heen awarded under the 2ian
at March 31, 1887, 1986 and 1985, respectively. Compensation expense of $31,000, $51.000 and 542,000 wes
racognized in the years ended March 31, 1957, 1286 and 1285, respectvely, related to the Plan.

In March 1886, the Company adopted a Defined Contribution Retrement Plan for all eliginie amployees which
gualifies under the provisions of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code and was retroactively etfective 1o
January 1, 1996. Employees are allowed 10 make tax deferred contrnbutions ranging from 1% to 15% of ther
eligible compensation. The Company matches 50% of the first 8% of each smployee's contribution and is eligibie
to make additional discretionary contributions. The Company recognized expense for contributions of $30,000 cuning
the fiscal year ended March 31, 1987.

United Wats operates a Defined Contribution Retirement Plan which qualified under the provisions of Section 401(k)
of the Internal Revenue Code. Employees are allowed to make tax deferred contributions ranging from 1% 10 15%
of their eligible compensation. United Wats matches 25% of the first % of each empioyee’s contribution and is
eligible to make additional discretionary contributions. Total profit sharning expense was 313,000 and 38,000 for
the years ended March 31, 1997 and 1998, respectively. i

7. STOCK WARBANTS:

The Company grants warrants to various directors, officers, employees and nonemployees from time to time. The
warrants vest in periods ranging from immediately following grant date to ten years from grant date. Terms and
conditions of the Company's warrants, including exercise price and the period warrants are exercisable, generally
are at the discretion of the Company’'s Board of Directors. Each warrant granted allows for the purchase of one
share of the Company’s common stock. No warrants are exercisable for a period of more than ten years.

The Company accounts for warrants lruund under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, under which no
compensation cost has been recognized. Had compensation cost for these plans been determined consistent with
SFAS No, 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” the Company's net income (loss) and earnings (loss)
per commeon share would have been reduced to the following pro forma amounts:

— . Year Ended March 31
Net income (loss): As Reported $(7.854,000) $374,000
Pro Forma {8,052,000) (2,0586,000)
Primary and fully diluted
earnings (loss) per share: As Reported  (1.30) 0.07
Pro Forma (1.40) 10.42)

Because the method of accounting prescribed by SFAS No. 123 has not been applied to options granted pricr 16 Apri
1, 1885, the resulting pro forma compensation cost may not be representative of that to be expected in future years.
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- A summary of the status of the Company's stock warrants granted at March 31, 1987 and 1996 and changes during
the years then ended is presented in the table and narrative below:

1887 18404
Weighted Weignted
Average Average
Exercise Exarcise
QOutstanding, beginning of
year 1,202,002 8 B.15 120,000 ¢ 7.50
Granted 80,000 10.15 1.082,002 8.22
Exercised - - - -
Forfeited [230.000) 9.00 (10.000] 7.78
Expired - - - -

Outstanding, end of year 1062002 . 804 L202002 L85
Exercisable, end of yeor  _B86334 £ 821 1002000 £ 823
Weighted average fair value

of options granted L4282 | M1

The options outstanding at March 31, 1887 have exercise prices ranging from $7.50 to $10.4375 with a remaining
weighted average contractual life of 6.73 years.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing mode!
with the following weighted average assumptions used for options granted during the years ended March 31, 1887
and 1996:

Waighted A ; ,
" ~1897 . 1808

Risk free interest rate 5.9% 5.5%

Expected life (years) an 5.6

Expected volatility 47.8% 40.3% -

Expected dividends - -

8. COMMITMENTS:

At March 31, 1887, the Company was committed under noncancellable, noncapitalizable agreements for fixed cost
transmission facilities that require minimum payments of approximately $19,100,000 in 1998, $9,450,000 in 1989,
$8,100,000 in 2000 and $3,375.000 in 2001,

The Company leases office facilities and certain equipment under noncancellable operating leases having initial of
remaining terms of more than one year. Rent expanse related 1o these leases was approximately $576,000,
$375,000, and $81,000 for the years ended March 31, 1987, 1996 and 1985, respectively. Approximate minimum
lease payments under these operating leases are as follows:

1888 § 604,000
1998 605,000
2000 522,000
2001 242,000
2002 30.000




rs

ir April 1996, the Company entered into a sale-leaseback transaction whersby the Company sold communications
equipment to a financial institution and obtained a lease for the communications equipment. The lease requires
annual payments of 8185,000 and expires in March 2000. Ne gain or loss was recognized upon consummation of
the sale-leaseback transaction. The lease 15 accounted for as an cperanng lease.

Certain of the Company’s facility leases include renewal options and all leases include provisions for rent escalatian

9. CONTINGENCIES:

On February B, 1986, President Clinton signed the Telecommunications Act of 1396 (the "Telecom Act”l, whieh
permits, without limitation, the Regional Bell Operating Companies (RBOCs) to provide domestic and international
long distance services to customers located outside of the RBOCs home regior.s; permits a petitioning REC0C 12
provide domestic and imternational long distance service to customers within its home regions upon a finding by the
Federal Communications Commission (the “FCC”) that a petitioning RBOC has satisfied certain criteria for opening
up its local exchange network to competition and that its provision of long distance services would further the public
interest; and remove existing barriers to entry into local service markets. Additionally, there are significant changes
in the manner in which carrier-to-carrier arrangements are regulated at the federal and state level; procedures to
revise universal service standards: and, penalties for unauthorized switching of customers. The FCC has instituted
proceedings addressing the implementation of this legislation.

On August B, 1886, the FCC released its First Report and Order in the Martter of Implementation of the Local
Competition Provisions in the Telecom Act (the “FCC Interconnect Order”). In the FCC Interconnect Order, the FCC
established nationwide rules designed to encourage new entrants to participate in the local sarvice markets through
imterconnection wyith the incumbent local exchange cariers [“ILEC”), resale of the ILECs retail services and unbundled
network slements. These rules set the groundwork for the statutory criteria governing RBOC entry into the long
distance market. The Company cannot predict the effect such legisiation or the implementing regulations will have
on the Company or the industry. Motions to stay implementation of the FCC Interconnect Order have been filed with
the FCC and federal courts of appeal. Appeals challenging, among other things. the validity of the FCC Interconnect
Order have been filed in several federal courts of appeal and assigned to the Eighth Circuit Court of Appeals for
disposition. The Eighth Circuit Court of Appeals has stayed the pricing provisions of the FCC Interconnect Order.
The United States Supreme Court has declined to review the propriety of fhe stay. The Company cannot predict
either the outcome of these challenges and appeals or the eventual etfect on its business or the industry in general.

On December 24, 1886, the FCC released a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking seeking to reform the FCC's current
access charge policies and practices to comport with a competitive or potentially competitive local access service
market. On May 7, 1897, the FCC announced that it will issue a series of ardars that raform Univarsal Sarvices-.
Subsidy allocations, adopt various reforms to the existing rate structure for interstate access that are designed 1o
reduce access charges, over time, to more economically efficient levels and rate structures. In partcular, the FCC
adopted changes to its rate structures for Common Line, Local Switching and Local Transport rate elements. The
FCC generally removed frormn minute-of-use access charges costs that are not incurred on a per-minute-of-use basis,
with such costs being recovered through flat rate charges. Additional charges and details of the FCC's actions are
1o be addressed when Orders are released within the near future. Access charges are a principal companent of the
Company's transmission costs. The Company cannot predict whather or not the result of these proceedings will
have a material impact upon its financial position or resuits of operations.

On May 21, 1997, the former Chief Executive Officer ["CEQ") of the Company initiated litigation against the
Company in an effort 1o obtain the release of shares subject to the common stock escrow agreement discussed in
Note 2, or to be otherwise compensated. Based on the fair market value of freely tradable commaon shares of the
Company, the fair market value of the shares subject to litigation at May 21, 1997 was approximately $2,650,000,
The ocutcome of this litigation, which the Company is vigorously defending, is uncertain. However, if any of the
escrowed shares of common stock are released, earnings (loss) per common share would be reduced. The fair value
of any shares released from escrow or any cash payment made 1o the former officer in connection with the litigation
would be charged to expense.

The Company is involved in legal proceedings generally incidental 1o its business. While the results of these vanous
legal matters contain an element of unceriainty, the Company believes that the probable cutcome of any of these
matters, or all of them combined, should not have a material adverse efHect on the Company’s consolidated results
of operations or financial pesition.
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10, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: -

and notes beanng interest at a rate of E%.

The Company is indebted to sharehoiders under notes payable aggregating $13,000 and $107.000, respectivaly,
at March 31, 1997 and 1996, The note payable outstanding at March 31, 1857 bears intarest at 8% and matures
Ocztober 1897. The notes are secured by communications equipment.

The Company leases office space and a retail facility from shareholders under two operating leases. Annual rentals
under the leases totaled $33,000, $37,000, and $36,000, respectively, for the years ended March 31, 1987, 12496
and 1885,

11, SUPPLEMENTAL DISCIOSURE OF CASH ELOW INFORMATION:

interest paid by the Company during the years ended March 31, 1887, 1986 and 1395 amounted to $471,000,
$261,000, and $B8,000, respectively. Income taxes paid dunng the years ended March 31, 1807, 1986 and 1885,
were $616,000, $115,000 and $25,000, respectively.

In conjunction with business combinations and customer base acquisitions during the years ended March 31, 1987,

1996 and 1995, assets acquired and non-cash consideration issued were as follows: ..
Margh 31
1987 19498 19498

Fair value of tangible assets acquired $ 776,000 42,135,000 $§ 438,000
Excess of cost over tangible assets acquired 4,887,000 7,330,000 1,771,000
Accounts receivable forgiven - (893,000} (196,0001
Liabilities assumed - " {650,000) -

Notes payable issued - (632,000) -

Common stock issued * JLAA2.000) (&2808.000) __{232.000)
Cash paid $1801.000 £1101000 £LJRLOQQ

For the year ended March 31, 1986, noncash transactions also included debt incurred for purchase of equipment
of $29,000 and other noncash transactions of 88,000, For the year ended March 31, 1985, noncash transactions
included retirement of treasury stock of $147,000, capital lease obligations incurred of $67,000, other noncash
transactions of $25,000 and redemption of preferred stock of $181,000. '

12. CONCENTRATIONS AND TELECOMMUNICATIONS INDUSTRY RISKS:

Four of the Company's switchless customers accounted for approximately 13% of revenues in 1996 and
approximately 13% of gross accounmts receivable at March 31, 1986, The Company’s five largest switchless
customers accounted for approximately 10% of revenues and approximately 9% of gross accounts receivable at
March 31, 1897. The decrease in concentration of switchless customers resuits from the Company’s de-emphasis
of its switchless reseller division. The Company performs initial and ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and
maintains an allowance for doubt'ul accounts, Customers may be asked to provide personal guarantees and/or
security deposits. Hf the financial condition and operations of these switchiess customers deteriorate below critical
levels, the Company’s operating results could be adversely affected.

The Company faces intense competition in providing long distance telecommunications service. Domestically, the
Company competes for services with AT&T, MCI, Sprint and WorldCom, the local exchange carriers ("LECs®] and
other national and regional interexchange carriers (“IXCs”"), where permissible. Certain of these companies have
substantially greater market share and financial resources than the Company, and some of them are the source of
communications capacity used by the Company to provide its own services.
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The Company’s long distance talephone business is dependent upon lease or resale arrangements with fiber-apye
and digital microwave carriers for the transmission of calls. The future profitability of the Company is based upon
its ability to transmit long distance telephone calls over transmission facilities leased from others on a cost-etective
basis. The Company is currently dependent on three primary carriers, Franuer Communications Services, Inc.,
WorldCom Network Services, Inc. and Sprint. The Company utilizes other fiber optic carriers to a lesser extent 1g
supplement communication transport sarvices, however, there can be no assurance that in the future the Company
will continue to have access, on an ongoing basis, 1o transmission facilities at favorabie rates.

The telecommunications industry is subject to rapid and significant changes in technology. While the Company does
not believe that, for the foreseeable future, these changes will sither matanally and adversely affect the cantinued
use of fiber optic cable or materially hinder its ability to acquire necessary technologies, the effect of technological
changes, including changes relating to emerging wireline and wireless transmission and switching technologies, on
the businesses of the Company cannot be predicted.

13. SUBSFQUENT EVENTS:

In May 1887, the Company acquired Eastern Teiecom International Corporation (“Eastern®), a pravider of long
distance telecommunications services, in a transaction to be accounted for as a purchase. The acquisition was
consummated with the issuance of 3,633,272 shares of the Company's commen stock and cash of 1,500,000,
Of the 3,833,272 shares issued, 83,492 shares are held in escrow pending resclution of purchase price
contingencies. At March 31, 1987, Eastern had total assets of 87,352,000 and shareholder's equity of 81,083, 000.
For the eleven month period ended March 31, 1997, Eastern had revenues of 820,429,000 and net income of

$383,000.

In May 1887, the Company acquired Naticnal Teleservice, Inc. (“National®), a provider of long distance
telecommunications services, in a transaction to be accounted for as a pocling-of-interests. In exchange for all of
the outstanding common stock of National, the Company issued 3,274,188 shares of its common stock, of which
155,624 shares are held in escrow pending resolution of purchase price contingencies. As the merger will be
accounted for under the pocling-uf-interests method, the historical financial data of the Company will be restated
to include National data. The following unaudited pro forma data summarizes the combined results of operations
mhmuﬂmnwuuwmmnwhﬂmo!mu year ended March 31, 1995:

——Yaar Ended March 31, (Unaudited)

1347 1994 1995
Revanues . $86,000,000 _AB7.580,000 348,315,000
Net income (8,874,000} 985,000 1,830,000
Earnings per share (0.73) 0.12 0.21

Subsequent to the acquisitions discussed above, four principals of Eastern and National were elected 1o be members
of the Board of Directors. In addition, a new Chairman of the Beard of Directors and CEQ, Chief Financial Otficer
and Treasurer, and Secretary were elected. The newly elected Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer and Treasurer formerly served in similar capacities for Eastern. The newly elected Secretary
formerly served as President ard Chief Executive Officer of National,
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